PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Mangalore Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mangalore Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited
("the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 22(g), which states that the Company had recognized urea subsidy income
of INR 2,914 lakhs during the financial year 2020-21 considering that benchmarking of its cost of
production of urea using Naphtha with that of gas-based urea manufacturing units is arbitrary and for
which the Company had already filed a writ petition against the Department of Fertilizers before the
Hon’ble High court of Delhi. Based on legal opinion obtained, the management believes that the criteria
for recognition of subsidy revenue is met. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audi pinion on the
accompanying financial statements. (R R T
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Sl. | Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit
No | (Refer Note 22 and 9 to the financial Matter
statements)
1. Impact of government policies /
notifications on  recognition  of | Our audit procedures included among others, the
concession income and its | following:
recoverability + Read the relevant notifications and policies
issued by the Department of Fertilizers to
The Company recognises concession ascertain the recognition of concession
(subsidy) income receivable from the income, adjustments thereto recognised
Department of Fertilizers, Government of pursuant to changes in the rates and basis for
India as per the New Pricing Scheme for determination of concession income.
Urea and as per Nutrient Based Subsidy |« Obtained an understanding of the process
Policy for Phosphatic and Potassic and tested the design and operating
fertilizers at the time of sale of goods to its effectiveness of controls as established by the
customers. During the current year, the management in recognition and assessment
Company has recognised concession of the recoverability of the concession
income of INR 2,68,770.17 Lakhs and as income.
at 31 March 2023 has receivables of INR |+ Evaluated the management's assessment
63,358.47 LLakhs relating to such income. regarding compliance with the relevant
conditions as specified in the notifications and
We focused on this area because policies and collections of concession
recognition of concession income and income.
assessment of its recoverability is subject |+ Performed substantive procedures to
to significant judgement of interpretation of understand and validate the basis of
various notifications from the Department computation of concession income with
of Fertilizers. underlying notifications and policies.
+ Tested the ageing analysis and assessed the
The area of judgement includes certainty information used by the management to
around the satisfaction of conditions determine the recoverability of the
specified in the notifications and policies, concession income by considering collections
collections and  provisions thereof, against historical trends.
likelihood of variation in the related |e Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in
computation rates, basis for determination the financial statements.
of accruals of concession income and
timely recoverability thereof.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Directors report, corporate governance,
Management Discussion & Analysis Report and business responsibility and sustainability report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for Financial Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
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internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters commumcated wath those charged with governance, we determme tho;se matters that
therefore
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the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
s0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The audited financial statements of the Company for the corresponding year ended 31 March 2022
prepared in accordance with Ind AS included in these financial statements, have been audited by the
predecessor auditors whose audit report dated 17 May 2022 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
audited financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its
financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 7 and 35 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023; and

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from horrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, sec "fhe\like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries /3 S




(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment
of dividend.

As stated in note 13 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company has
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with Section 123
of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner S
Membership No. 208545~
UDIN : 23208545BGVAIP2147

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 119 May 2023



Annexure A

Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even date to the members of Mangalore Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited (“the Company”) on the
financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023.

V)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

a)

b)

(a)
(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3A to the
financial statements, as confirmed by bank are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has notrevalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

(8) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

The inventory, except goods in transit, has been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.
In respect of goods-in-transit, subsequent goods receipts have been verified. In our opinion, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns or statements filed by the
company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has neither given any loan, guarantees and security nor made any investment during the
year covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the

Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the

meaning of the Act and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of

sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company:
#




(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

(@)

(b)

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under Sub-Section (1) of Section
148 of the Act in respect of the products/services of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company as specified under sub section (1) of section 148 of
the Act, for maintenance of cost records in respect of the products manufactured by the Company,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not, made a detailed examination of cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, and any other
material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at 31 March
2023, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute,
except as stated below:

Amount | Amount Period to
Name of the Nature of demanded aid (In which Forum where dispute
Statute the Dues P amount is pending
({In Lakhs) Lakhs)
relates
The Income Tax The High Court of
Act, 1961 Income tax 358.04 52.89 FY 2013-14 Karnataka
The Central Customs, Excise and
Excise Act, Excise duty 638.96 - r::;‘(;) 1152_ _112 Service
1944 Tax Appellate Tribunal
Karnataka Value .
Added Tax Act, | Entry tax 423.44 ; FY 2011-12 | [he High Court of
Karnataka
2003
Customs, Excise and
The Customs Customs FY 2011-12 .
Act, 1962 dut 315.10 8171 o 201617 | Service
' y Tax Appellate Tribunal
Commissioners of
e Customs | Sustoms 87.60 ; FY 2016-17 | Customs,
' y Nhava Sheva
Additional
The Customs Customs Commissioners of
Act, 1962 duty 22.00 ) FY 2017-18 Customs,
Nhava Sheva
. Customs, Excise and
;’gte I:gnga;nce Service tax 15.49 1.06 i:zzg 115_ '112 Service
' Tax Appellate Tribunal

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management,
no amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management,

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings

thereon to any lender.

in payment of interest



(b)

()
(d)

(e)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(@)

(©

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there were no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence the
question of whether money raised were applied for the purposes for which those are raised does not
arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year and hence the question of whether the requirements of section 42 and
section 62 of the Act have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes
for which the funds were raised does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we report that no whistle blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the
transactions entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with Section 177
and Section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the Indian accounting standard Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS 24)

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2
of 1934).

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance, i




(©)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(@)

(b)

Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India and hence the questions of fulfilling criteria of a CIC, and in case the Company is an
exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to fulfill such criteria, do not arise. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, none
of the group companies are Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence the question of number of
CICs which are part of the Group does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is
not applicable.

On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report of the Company’s capability of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company having spent the required amount, there is no
amount pending to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section 135 of the said Act.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to transfer unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said
Act, pursuant to ongoing project to special account in compliance with provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants ...
Firm’'s Registration N 00399@3/8200018

Partner

Membership No. 20\4\5
UDIN : 23208545BGVAIP2147

et

Place of Signature: Bangalore

Date:

11t May 2023



Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Mangalore Chemicals
& Fertilizers Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future period; t to the risk that the




internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.0039905/5200018

Seethalakshmi M
Partner N
Membership No. 20854
UDIN : 23208545BGVAIP2147

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 11t May 2023
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Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

: As at As at
Notes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3A 1.05970 52 33294 34
Capital work-in-progress 3A 1408 49 31.738 31
Right-of-use assets 3B 1.620 84 1.859 41
Intangible ts 4 107 24 107 91
Financial assets
(1) Investuents 3 - -
{11) Others 6 59471 H16 86
Tncome tax assets (net) 14408 I83.83
Other non-current assets 7 627 64 1.286.27
1,10,473.32 91,089.13
Current assets
Inventortes R 24113960 4297747
Financial assets
1) [nvestiments S 010 010
(1) Trade recervables 9 75.724 26 6650277
i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 3297995 48.207 20
(1v) Other bank balances 11 3.603 39 7.514.33
(v) Others 6 5.982.83 349138
Other current assets 7 13.034.94 10.293 67
1,55,441.43 1.80,987.14
Total assets 2,65914.95 2,72,076.27
EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 11,834 87 11.854.87
Other equity 13 68.463 95 56.452.12
Total equity 80,318.82 68,306.99
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowmgs 14 35.667.55 2181513
(t1) Lease liabilities I3 1.886 60 2.068.09
(1i1) Others 16 - 1514
Provisions 17 1.180 60 113473
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 0.149 86 5.106.70
44.884.61 30.139.79
Current liabilities
Financral liabilities
(1) Borrowmgs 19 1.00.099 37 112346 47
(11) Lease habilities 15 3607 45 66
t1ti) Trade payvables
Tolal vutstanding dues ol miero enterprises and small enterprises 20 4582 66 1.057 83
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 19.674 70 39419 36
enterprises 20
(1v) Others 16 12.820 30 17.072.72
Liabilities for current tax (net) 43233 216.74
Other current habilities 21 1941 22 1.742.73
Provisions 17 111767 1.027 96
Total liahilities 1,40,711.52 1.73,629.49

Total equity and Habilities

2,65.914.95

2,72,076.27




As at As at

Notes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Notes
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements

As per our report of even date

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants

wb

Scethalakshmi M f"@i‘w%w,y 3
Partner 'f‘x/’,’GALQw
Membership Number: 2085w
Place of Signature

Date. May 11.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of’

Mangalore Chemicals and Fertihizers Limited P

by

Akshay Poddar
Charrman
DIN 00008686

Tm

T.M. Muralidharan
Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 11,2023

Nitin M Kantak
Whole-time Director
DIN: 08029847

/

Vijayamalpvnﬁﬁhannur

Company Secretary




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
tAll amounts m Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Notes
otes March 31,2023 March 31,2022

INCOME
Revenue trom contracts with customers 22 36405240 2.89.558.30
Other mcome 23 3.064.62 242706
Total income 3.67,217.02 2.91,985.36
EXPEXNSES
Cost ot maternals consumed 24 1.99.625.52 1.86.934 66
Purchases of traded goods 23 2381356 641691
Changes minventories of finished goods.
work-in-progress and traded goods 26 11.842 37 (13.122.69)
Emplovee benetits expense 27 691718 6.962 64
Finance costs 28 10,437 76 4.940 42
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 3.967 50 305575
Other expenses 30 89.010.54 81.331.66
Total expenses 3.49.614.43 2,78,519.35
Profit before tax 17,602.59 13,466.01
Tax expense 3
Current tax / Mimmum Alternate Tax 3.07700 2.350.00
Deterred tax charge / (credit) 1060 08 2.32988
Total tax expense 4,137.08 4,679.88
Profit for the vear 13,463.51 8,786.13
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassitied 1o profit or loss

Re-measurement (losses)/gams on defined benetit plan (48.42) 3115

Income tax eftect on above 16.92 10.88
Total other comprebensive income/(loss) (31.30) (20.27)
Total comprehensive income for the vear 13,434.01 8.765.86
Earnings per equity share (in INR) 32
[nominal value per share INR 10 (Previous year: INR 10)]
Basic 11.36 741
Diluted 11.36 7.41
Sunumary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS$ financial statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

Akshay Poddar Nitin M Kantak
Chairman Whole-time Director
DIN 00008686 DIN- (8029847

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants . SRR,
ICAT Firm Registration Nuinber: 0039908/S200018

™,

T.M. Muralidhhran
Chief Financial Officer

Seethalakshmi M
Partner
Membership Number: 208343

\ antesh Khannur
Company Secretary

Place of Signature

Date: May 11,2023 Date: May 11,2023




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2023
CAlFamounts i Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Notes
March 31, 2023 Ml 31,2022
A Operating activities
Profit before tax 17.602.39 13.400.01
Adjustiments to reconctle profit before tax to pet cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 5.967.50
Net loss on disposal of property. plantand equipnient 30 32106
Fau value Toss (gainy on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (245.25) (663 H3)
Unrealised foreign exchange ditferences tnety (90.26) 81283
Finance costs 28 10143776 4,940 42
Interest income 23 2218 (192810}
Provisions no longer required written back 23 (389.08}) (343.70)
Operating profits before working capital changes 31,283.04 21,885.99
Working capital changes:
tIncrease) Decrease m Inventonies i8.803.51 (24.839.21)
{Increase)-Decrease in Trade recevables (9.221.49) (15,644 24
(Increase) Decrease m Other financial assets (37 25) 43376
(Increase) Decrease in Other assets (2,703 44 (1,093 95
(Dectease)inorease i Tuade pavables (16.131.79) 764102
{Decrease)inerease i Other financial habilities 3018 371343
tDecrease)inerease  Other current labilities and provisions 64390 970.12
{8.558.38) (28,793.07)
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 22,724.66 (6,907.08)
Income tax paid (3,512.00) (1,814.37)
Net cash flow tfrom/(used in) operating activities (A} 19,212.00 (8.721.45)
B Investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment including capital work-in-
progress and capital advances (3052941 (16,966.33)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 228 48 [2.41
Tnvestments in bank deposits (having oviginal maturity of more than
three months) (3.237.40) (20.755.33)
Redemption-maturtty of hank deposits (having origmal maturigy of
more than three months) 7.043.60 18,195 81
fnterest received 20037 822.20
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) {24,300.96) {18,691.19)
C Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 23,320.59 13,920.20
Repavment of long-termy borrowings (6,989 69} (7.663.01)
Pavment of principal portion of lease liabilitie; (235.04) £252.70)
Proceeds from trepayment of) short-term borrowings (net) (14.72338) 388t1.17
Frnance cost paid (10,087 99y (3249 03)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders 13 (1.422.18) (1.183.15)
Net cash flow (used in)/ from financing activities (C) {10,138.29) 40,378.82
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (15,227.25) 12,966.18
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the vear 10 48,207.20 3
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 32,979.95 48,207.20
Components of cash and cash equivalents 10
Cash on hand 226 2.80
Bank balances on current accounts 3,302.09 8.254.40
Bank balances on deposit accounts with original maturity of three months or less 29.675.00 39.950.00
Total cash and eash cquivalents 32,979,958 48,207.20
The summary of changes in liahilities arising from finaneing activites is as below
Non current borrowings (including current maturities
At begimning of the year 1 28,607.88 20,358.76
Cash flow changes 16,330.90 8. 19
Non-cash changes (foreign currency exchange difference) - {607)
At end of the vear 14 44,938.78 28,607.88
Current borrowings (excluding current matgrities of lony term borrowings)
At beginming of the year 19 1,05,553.72 6587101
Cash flow changes (14,723.38) 3881017
Non-cash changes (foreign currency exchange difference) (2.20) 870.94
At end of the vear 9 90,828.14 1,05,553.72
At beginning of the year 15 201375 23412
Cash flow changes (3339 (30.26)
Non-cash changes (13749 15.89
15 1,922.67 2,113.75

Atend of the vear | -




Summary of significant accountng policies

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the Ind AS financtal statements.

As per our report of even date

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountangs ~ :
ICAL Firm Registration “Njmber: (0399055200018

Seethalakshmi,
Partner .
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Date: May 11.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of
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Akshay Poddar
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DIN: 00008686
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T.M. Murafidharan
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Date: May 11,2023

Nitin M Kantak
Whole-time Divector
DIN: 08029847
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Yijavamahantesh Khannur
Company Secretary




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Altamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
At the beginning of the year 11.85.15.150 11.851.52 11.85.15.150 11.851.52
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period - - - -
errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 11.85.15.150 11.851.52 11.85.15.150 11.851.52
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the vear 11,85,15,150 11,851.52 11,85,15,150 11,851.52

In addition to above. equity share capital as at March 31.
(March 31. 2022: INR 3.35 Lakhs).

b) Other equity

2023 includes Forfeited Shares (amount paid-up) of INR 3.33 Lakhs

¢ aplta-l - Retained
redemption General reserve . Total
earnings

reserve

Note 13 Note 13 Note 13
Balance as at April 1, 2021 480.78 5.385.71 43,004.92 48.871.41
Changes in accounting policy / prior period errors - - - -
Profit for the vear - - 8.786.13 8.786.13
Other comprehensive income - - 2027 (20.27)
Total comprehensive income - - 8.765.86 8.765.86
Cash dividends (Refer Note 13) - - (1.185.13) (1.185.13)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 480.78 5,385.71 50,585.63 56,452.12
Balance as at April 1, 2022 480.78 3.385.71 50.385.63 56.452.12
Changes in accounting policy / prior period errors - - - -
Profit Tor the year - - 13.463.51 13.465.51
Other comprehensive income - - (31.50) (31.30)
Total comprehensive income - - 13.434.01 13.434.01
Cash dividends (Refer Note 13) - - (1.422.18) (1.422.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 480.78 5,385.71 62,597.46 68,463.95
Retained earnings - Retained earnings represent profits generated by the Company not distributed to shareholders.
Capital redemption reserve - The said reserve was created by way of transfer from general reserve on redemption of preference

shares. This reserve account can be applied in paying up unissued shares to be issued to members of the Company as fully paid
honns shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




General reserve - Under the erstwhile Companies Act. 1956, general reserve was created through transfer of net income at a
specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transters was to ensure that if a dividend
distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year. then the total dividend distribution
is less than the total distributable results for that vear. Consequent to introduction of the Companies Act. 2013 the requirement o
mandatorily transfer a specitied percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However. the amount previously
transferred to the general reserve can be wilised only in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act. 2013,

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalt of the Board of Directors of

Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

L

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP Akshay Poddar Nitin M Kantak

Chartered Accountants ) — Chairman Whole-time Director

ICAI Firm Registration Number (H39905/S20001(8 DIN: 00008686 DIN: 08029847
Seethalakshmi M ' 'V\ \/@é\w"'g

Partner . T.M. Murali \'i_iayan/m’h;n_t:sh Khannur
Membership Number: 208543 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place ot Signature
Date: May 11.2023 Date: May 11.2023




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited ("MCF™ or “the Company™) is a public limited company domiciled in
India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on two
recognized stock exchanges in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Level 11, UB Tower. UB
city. 24, Viuul Mallya Roud, Bengaluru 560001, Karnataka, India. The Company is primarily engaged in the
manufacture, purchase and sale of fertilisers. I'he Company has manutacturing facility in India. Intormation on
related party relationships ot the Company is provided in Note 38.

The Ind AS financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 11, 2023,
2. Basis of preparation of Ind AS financial statements

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 (as amended from time
to time) and presentation requirements of Division 1T of Schedule 11T to the Companies Act. 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule D). as applicable to the Ind AS financial statements.

The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for assets and liabilities which
are required o be measured at fair value. The Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("TNR™)
and all values are rounded W the nearest lakhs (INR 00.000). except when otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial statement have
been applied consistently, except for the changes in accounting policy for amendments t the standard that were
issued effective for the financial year heginning from on or after April 1, 2022 as stated in Note 2.3.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balunce sheet based on current/non-current classitication. An asset

is treated as current when it is:

e cxpected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:

o held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period: or

» cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A fiability is current when:

s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

o held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢ due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period: or

¢ there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deterred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

(b) Foreign currencies

The Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date, the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However. for practical reasons. the Company uses an
average rate. it the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange dilterences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
and foss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
ranslation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or oss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.c.. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in
other comprehensive income (~OCI™) or the statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCT or statement of
profit and loss, respectively).

(¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transter the lability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

s inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must he accessible by the Company.

The fuir value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability o generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed m the [nd AS tinancial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is signiticant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

¢ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Ind AS financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is Signitiégnt fo the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement. such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. and for non-recurring measurement.

such as ussets held for sale in discontinued operations.External valuers are involved. wherever considered necessary.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature. characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy, as explained
above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

(d) Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are translerred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benetits will flow to the Company and the
revenuc can be reliably measured. regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the company as a part of contract. The Company has concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements,

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account and is tax collected on value added
to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly. it is excluded from revenue.

The disclosures of signiticant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in Note 2.2,

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of product is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is tansferred  the
customer, generally on dispatch of the product. The normal credit term is 15 to 120 days upon delivery.

Revenue from the sale of products, including concession receivable from the Government of India under the
applicable New Pricing Scheme / Nutrient Based Subsidy Policy. is recognised when control of the products has
transferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Revenue towards satisfaction of performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net
of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services
rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the company as a
part of contract.

Concessions in respect of Urea, as notified under the New Pricing Scheme, is recognized with adjustments for
escalation/de—escalation in the prices of inputs and other adjustments, as estimated by the management in accordance
with the known policy parameters in this regard.

Subsidy for Phosphatic and Potassic (P&K) fertilisers is recognized as per the rates notified by the Government of
India in accordance with Nutrient Based Subsidy Policy from time to time.

Freight subsidy on Urea, Complex fertilisers, ete. is recognized in accordance with the specified parameters and
notified rates.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods. the Company considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of signiticant financing components, and consideration payable to the customer (if any)




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

(i) Variable consideration

It the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount. the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception.

(it)  Significant financing component

The Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 113. the
Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a signiticant financing component if
it expects. al contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the custonter
and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one vear or less.

Sale of services
Service income is recognized. on an acerual basis, at agreed rate in accordance with the terms of the agreement.
Tnierest fncome

Interest income from dealers and others on delayed payments is recognized to the extent the Company is reasonably
certain of their ultimate collection.

Other interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial assel. Interest income is included under the head ~other income™ in the statement of profit and
loss.

Contract balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the
pussage ol time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Reter to accounting policies of tinancial
assets in paragraph (o) Financial Instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract Hability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company pertorms
under the contract.

(e) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance Lhal the ﬂrant x\'ill be received and all attached

conditions will be complied with.
systematic basis over the periods




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset.

(f) Taxes
Currenl income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected 0 be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted. at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement ol profit and loss is recognised outside the
statement of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying wansaction). Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all waxable temporary differences and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufticient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assel to be
utilised. Unrccognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Defterred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement
of profit and loss (either in OCT or in equity in correlation to the underlying transaction).

Deterred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
asscts against current tax liabilities and the deferied tuxes relute W the sunre tuxable entity and the saime taxation
authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the vear.
The deferred tax assct is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specitied year. i.e., the vear for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the “MAT credit
entitlement™ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it
will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

When the tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, the tax paid is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. Otherwise,
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expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of taxes paid. The net amount of tax recoverable from, or
pavable to. the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payvables in the balance sheet.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS ie. I April 20135, the Company has elected to continue with the carrving value of all ol its
property, plant and equipment (PPE) recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the PPE.

Property. plant and equipment. capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise. when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised
in the carrving amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement. if the recognition criteria are satistied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. [tems of stores and spares
that meet the definition of Property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost, otherwise, such items are classitied
as inventories,

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets. estimated by the management, as
follows:

Useful life (vears)

Buildings 3 to 60
Railway sidings 15
Ruouds, drainage and culverts 5t0 30
Plant and equipment (continuous process plant) 25
Computer equipment Jand 6
Clectrical installations and fittings 10
Oftice cquipment Sand 13
Furniture and fixtures 10
Cranes and locomotives 15
Vehicles 8 and 10

For the purpose of depreciation calculation, residual value is determined as 3% of the original cost for all the assets,
as estimated by the management basis independent assessment by an expert. The Company. based on assessment
made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates following assets. not included above, over the
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013.
I'he management believes that these estimated usetul lives reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely ro he nsed

(i) The useful lives of components of certain plant and equipment are estimated as 2 to 20 vears.

(1) Insurance/ capital/ critical stores and spares are depreciated over the remaining usetul lite ot related plant and
equipment or useful life of insurance/capital/ critical spares. whichever is lower.

(iii) The useful lives of certain vehicles are estimated as 3 to 5 years.

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected tfrom its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the ditference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profitand loss when the asset is derecognised.
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The residual values. usciul lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively. il appropriate.

(h) Intangible assets

On wansition to Ind AS. the Company hus elected 1o continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets
recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles. excluding capitalised development costs. are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The usetul lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benelits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate. and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures are recognised as intangible asset when the
Company can demonstrate:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

* intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset.

* its future economic benefits,

e the availability of resources to complete the asset and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use.

Computer Soffware

The computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life of 5 years, as estimated by
the management.

(i) Borrowing cests

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(j) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an’identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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The Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach tor all leases. except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlving assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the fease (i.e.. the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease Habilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised. initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost retlects the exercise
ofa purchase option. depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful lite of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (1) Impairment of’
non-tinancial assets.

Lease liabilities

AL the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchasc option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company ad payments of penaliies {or terminating the
lease. it the lease term retlects the Company exercising the option o terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the

period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition. the carrving amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.. changes to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. The Cotnpany s Tease liabilities are included in Borrowings.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less tfrom the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). 1t also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be of low value. Lease payvments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Effective April 1. 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 on Leases which replaces Ind AS 17 on Leases,
including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement. presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the
accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The Company has used the moditied retrospective approach for
transition to Ind AS 116 and consequently comparatives for previous year have not been restated. The Company also
elected to use the recognition ex emptiofis-for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term_of 12
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months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases). and lease contracts for which the underlying
asset is of low value (low-value assets).

This has resulted in recognition of right-of~use assets and corresponding lease labilities of Rs. 2,013.20 Lakhs as at
April 1. 2019. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lower of useful life of the asset or the lease term and
interest on lease liabilities is recognized under finance costs. The net impact of adopting this standard on the
statement of profit and loss and earnings per share is not material, Refer disclosures included in Note 33 for details.

The Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Compuny does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classitied as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrving amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisuble value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its
present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

*  Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

¢ Finished goods and Work-in-progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

e Traded Goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost il the finished
goods in which they will be incorporated wre expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

() Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses. at each reporting date. whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (~CGL™) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. uniess the
asset dues nol generute cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices tor publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detiled budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period- of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash tlows aft ‘.thcf‘ﬂﬂh year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
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the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case. this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products. industries. or country in which the entity
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impuirment losses of continuing operations. including impairment on inventories. are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. It such indication exists. the Company estimates the assel’s or
CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(m) Provisions

Provisions arc recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or
all of a provision to be reimbursed. the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss,
net of any reimbursement.

It the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation.
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense. when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. [f the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the halance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
Lo the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of superannuation fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
established a Superannuation Fund Trust to which contributions are made each month. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the superannuation fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. The Company has no other obligations bevond its monthly contributions.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method. Re-measurements. comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net detined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCT in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the carlier of:
* the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e the date that the Company r¢cognizes related restructuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benelit liability or asset. The Company
recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:
® service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs. gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements: and
e netinterest expense or income

Accumulated leave. which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months. is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected o be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the vear-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability
in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an uncondilional right w defer its settlement for twelve months
alter the reporting date. Where the Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the scttiement
for a period beyond twelve months. the same is presented as non-current liability.

(0) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a (inancial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fuir value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However. trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame esrablished by regulation or convention in
the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company commits to
purchuse or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

® Debtinstruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e [Lquity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost. if both of the following conditions are met:

(i} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows;
and

(iiy  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the statement of protit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. This category generally applies toiyad_éund other receivables.

&
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Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ~debt instrument” is classified as FVTOCTI, i both of the following criteria are met:

(i)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets: and

(ii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCT However. the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset. cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement ot protit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL catcgory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as FVTPL. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCI. then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCT to statement of profit and loss, even on sale ot investment. Equity instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

e Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash tlows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through™ arrangement; and
cither (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transterred control of
the asset.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee vver the tunsfened asset is
measured al the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure.

The Company follows “simplified approach™ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether

there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased

significantly, twelve month. s ysed to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk_has~tcreased
: . P
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significantly, lifetime CCL is used. I, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on twelve-month ECL.

Litetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected lite of a
financial instrument.

The twelve-month ECL s a portion of the litetime ECL which results trom detault events that are possible within
twelve months after the reporting date. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash tlows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e.. all cash
shorttalls), discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period
is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ~other
expenses” in the statement of profit and loss.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines tinancial instruments on the basis of’
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identitied on a timely basis.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure. the Company categorizes them into
Stage 1. Stage 2 and Stage 3. as described below:

Stage [: When financial assets are first recognized, the Company recognizes an allowance based on 12 months
ECLs.

Stage 1 financial assets also include facilities where the credit risk has improved. and the financial assets has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit visk since origination. the Company
records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs. Stage 2 foans also include facilities. where the credit risk has improved.
and the financial assets has been reclassitied from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Financial assets considered credit impaired. The Company records an allowance tor the lifetime ECLs.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial Liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other
payables, and derivative tinancial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial labilities depends on their classitication.
Financial liabilities at fair value through protit or loss

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading it they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative tinancial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading, uniess
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satistied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/losses attributable “to -changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
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subsequently transferred (o the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may tansfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Louans and borrowings

Borrowings is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition. interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the liabilitics arc derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost
is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The ETR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liahility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existing timancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classitication of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial Habilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a re-classification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets.

A change in the business model occurs when the Company cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant Lo its operations. 1t the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the re-classitication prospectively
from the re-classification date. which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of tinancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if there is a
currently enforceable fegal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(p) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, currency and interest rate
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as tinancial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit
and loss.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and on hand and

short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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(r) Cash dividend to equity holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions (o equity holders when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporute laws in India, u distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

(s) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company: or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benetits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufticient reliability. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the Ind AS financial statements.

(t) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equily shares
outstanding during the vear.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue. share split. and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding. without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(u) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the
Company), whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chiel operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its pertormance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Operating segments of the Company are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chiet operating decision maker.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Ind AS financial statements requires management to make judgements. estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
vears.

d

The Company bases its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Ind AS financial statements are
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are bevond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. The judgements, estimates and assumptions management has made which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Ind AS financial statements are as below:

: émNGALORE )
A\ /
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

Revenue from contracts with custonters

Concessions in respect of urea. as notified under the New Pricing Scheme. is recognized with adjustments for
cscalation/de—escalation in the prices of inputs and other adjustments, as estimated by the management in accordance
with the known policy parameters in this regard. The Company recognises urea concession income from the
Government of India (“GOIT™) based on estimates as per the GOI notification dated June 17. 20135 and changes. if any,
are recognised in the year of finalisation ot the prices by the GOI under the scheme.

Also. the Company determines and updates its assessment of expected rebates periodically and the accruals are
adjusted accordingly. Estimates of expected rebates are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Company’s past
experience regarding these amounts may not be representative of actual amounts in the future.

Properiy, plant and equipment

The depreciation of property. plant and equipment is derived on determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful
life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are
determined by management at the time of acquisition of asset and is reviewed periodically, including at each financial
vear end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar ussets as well as anticipation ol (uture events,
which may impact their life.

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of impairment loss on the financial and non-
linuncial assets. The caleulations of impairment loss are sensitive to underlving assumptions.

Tax provisions and contingencics

Significant management judgement is requited to determine the amounts ol tax provisions wd comtingencies,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and MAT credit entitlements to the extent it is probable that

tuxable profit will be available against which these losses and credit entitlements can be utilized. Significant

management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
S

the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuation.
An actarial valuation involves various assumptions that may ditfer from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, o defined benelit obligation is highly sensitive w changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such
bond correspond to expected term of defined benetit obligation,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at

interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured

based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using internal valuation techniques. The inputs
to these models are taken from:obsérvable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
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judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk.
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual period
beginning on or after April 01. 2022, The Company has not early adopted any other standard or amendment that has
been issued but is not yet effective.

(1) Ind AS 103 Business Combination

Identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed (including contingent assets and contingent liabilitics) must meet the
definitions of assets und liubilities in the Concepual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAI).

(i) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments

Guidance provided on identifying substantial modification of the terms of an existing linancial liubility basis
ditference in discounted present value of the cash flows between old and new terms.

(ii1) Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, i any. shall not
be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an
item of property, plant, and equipment.

(iv) Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the “costs that relate directly to the
contract”. Costs that related directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfifling that contract (examples
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example
would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), on March 31, 2023, through the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2023 amended certain existing Ind ASs on miscellaneous issues with effect from 1st
April 2023, Following are few key amendments relevant to the Company:

{i) Ind AS I = Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting
Muteriul accounting policy information (Including focus on how an entity applied the requirements ot Ind AS)
shall be disclosed instead of significant accounting policies as part of tinancial statements.

(i) Ind AS 107 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Information about the measurement basis for financial instruments shall be disclosed as part of material
accounting policy information.

(iii) Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies. changes in accounting estimate and errors
Clarification on what constitutes an accounting estimate provided.

(iv) Ind AS 12 —Income Taxes
In case of a transaction which give rise 10 equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. the initial
recognition exemption from deferred tax is no longer applicable and deferred tax liability & deferred tax asset
shall be recognized on gross basisﬁi}iﬁ)’lﬂf s as
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a. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the above amendments which is not expected o
have any material impact on the tinancial statements of the Company. It may be noted that we expect there
would be a change in Accounting policies section of the financial statements as the standard would require
presentation of *material accounting policies™ as against “significant accounting policies’ disclosed so far

“his pace has been intentionally left blank]
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3A. Property, plaat and equipment

Depreciation

Net book value

Asat Aprit Additions Disposals As at March Asat April For the vear On As at March As at March
12022 31,2023 1, 2022 Disposals 31,2023 RERIAR]
Freehold land 0.817 79 - - .81779 - - - - 681779
Buildimes 3227206 - 126 30 3,100 90 112143 130 43 o4 30 3.887 36
Radway sidias 73307 - 73307 32857 39435 - 345035
Roads, dranase and cuiverts 128 17 159 41248 24950 2060 14 70
Plant and equipment ' 00303 09 57007 20 215206 T20SORRY 23 0088 544937 1481 od
Electriead wstallations and Nt 23006 - 1436 24470 tm 50 1755 1253
Office equipment 390 23 6534 S 88 REW 263 08 3022 | 33
Furmiture and nixwares 300 08 400 38403 31203 243 39 1887 3244 2Inaz 10261
Cranes and locomotn es 20707 - a08 200 99 12678 1968 0 00 1o 40 an 39
Vehieles - Owned 21T ol 70 911 27230 12431 3009 691 147 99 124 31
Total 8121245 57,228.90 2.384.83 1.36,056.50 25.918.09 5.802.28 163439 30,085.98 1,05,970.52
Openmg Addions  Capuahsed C 1
Capital work-in-progress " 31,738.51 26.898.88 57.228.90 1,408.49
Previous year
Depreciation Net book value
Asat Aprd Additons Dusposals As at Mareh As at Aprid For the vear n As at March As at March
12021 31, 2022 1, 2021 Disposals 3t 202 o2z
Frechold fand 5,817 79 - - 081779 - - - - 0,817 79
Buldmus 22720 - 322720 958 97 1O2 48 - 12145 4105 8]
Rarlway sidmus 673 15731 a2 73307 270 9% ol 88 j0 27 32857 404 343
Roads, dramage and culverts 42847 - - 42347 22748 2r02 - 249 30 178 97
Plant and cquipment ™ 6472870 274417 909 18 56,563 09 1943335 451010 33473 23,200 81 13272 88
Electnical mstaltavons and fitngs 23934 - 028 2539006 15213 1737 g22 169 30 89 30
Office equipment 33118 40 04 | 539 39023 23373 30 30 t ol 203 08 12715
Furnsture and tixtures 35931 077 - 300 08 20470 1889 - 243 39 12249
Cranes and locomotives 20707 - - 20707 116 01 2477 - 12078 80 29
Velieles - Owned 23508 030 3373 2971 12573 2045 3037 124 81 9400
Total 79.220.98 2,949,25 937.80 81,212.43 21,441.08 4.873.61 396.60 25,918.09 55,294.34

Capital work-in-progress o

() Plant and machinery and caputal work-m-progr

Upenuty, A ns
782617 26,861.59

Caputalised

Closing

2,049.25

31,738.51

5 additions durmy the perod meludes INR 1331 91 Lalhs 1 March 31, 2022

INR N and INR 1797 Lakhs ¢ March 3102022 INR

1,388 84 Lakhs), respectively, towards capitalisaton of borrowmg cost The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs ehgible for capitahsation was 9 27%, (March 31,

2022 81770 whieh s the averace mterest rate ot horrowines

(h) Refer Note 14 and 19 for detarts of property. plant and equipment pledged as securuy

(e} Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2023

Antount in CWIP for a period of

Less than § vear

1-2 vears

2-3 vears

More than 3 years

Total

Projects in progress 830 o 431 21 422 224 1.288 29
Projects temporarily suspended®* - - 354 PO 06 12070
Toeul 830.60 451.21 /.16 118,92 1,4U8.49
*¥ Project studies were conducted tor certam projects which are vahd and the projects are to be taken up at later stage
As at March 31, 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress * 24,242 70 359204 1,023 00 2,759 88 3101831
Projects temporarily suspended*# - 354 73 16 43 50 120 20
Total 24,242.76 3,596.15 1,096.22 2,803.38 31,738.51

* The Company envisaged Ammonia Energy Improvement Project [AEIP] 3 vears ago and substanual progress happened during the Financial vear 2022-23 and commussioned m

Financial year ending March 31, 2023

*¥ Project studies were conducted for certam proje

hich are valid and the projects are to be taken up at later stage




3B. Right-of-use assets

Cost Depreciation Net book value
As at April Additions Disposals As at March AsatApnl Forthe vear On As at March As at March
12022 31,2023 1. 2022 Disposals 312023 312023
Right-ot-use land {Refer Note 33) 1.989 94 - - 1,989 94 28938 - 38610 1.003 84
Riohi-of-nse banlilinus (Reter Noge 33) 23314 - 1849 9y 4312 74 03 1342 03 33 2012 17 00
Total 2,223.04 - 189,98 2,033.06 363.63 111,94 63.35 412,22 1,620.84
Previous year
Cost Depreciation Net book value
Asaut Apnl Additions Disposals As at Maich AsatAprt Tor the vea On As ot March As at March
12021 31, 2022 1,202 Disposals 31,2022 33,2027
Right-of-use land (Refer Note 33) 1.0gaal - - 1989 94 193 05 90 33 28958 1.700 30
Right-ot-use buildings (Reter Note 33) 231 69 1589 1448 23310 3702 31351 14 48 74035 15903
Total 2.221.63 15.89 14.48 2,223.04 23007 128.04 14.48 363.63 1,859.41
4. Intangible assets
Cost Amortisation Net book value
As al Apedd Additions Disposals As at March Asat Aprid For the vear On As at March As at March
1.2022 31,2023 12022 Disposals 31 2023 31,2023
Computer sottware 302 89 - 353551 194 99 5328 - 248 27 107 24
Total 302.89 - 194,99 53.28 - 248.27 107.24
Previous year
Cost Amortisation Net hook value
Asat Aprd Addittons Disposals Asat Mareh AsatApnil - For the vear On As at March As at March
120210 31,2022 12021 Disposals 31,2022 3t 2022
Computer soltware 289 84 1305 - 30289 140 89 3410 - 194 99 10791
Total 289.84 13.03 - 302.89 140.89 54.10 - 194,99 107.91

{This space has been imtentionally left blank]
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Non-current

Current

As at
March 31, 2023

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

5. Financial assets - Investments

(Unquoted)
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Bangalore Beverages Limited
{200,000 (March 31, 2022: 200.000) Redeemable
cumulative preference shares of Re. | each with
coupon rate of 10% p.a. repayable aller 20 years]
Less: Provision for impairment i value of
investment

Aditva Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund - Growth
Regular Plan

122,199 (March 31, 2022: 22.199) units of INR
S61.95 (March 31, 2022: INR 535.94) each]

Total

A

6. Financial assets - Others

Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss

Derivatives not designated as hedges®
Financtal assets at amortised cost
Security deposits
Rebate 7 discount receivable from suppliers
Other receivable
Interest accrued on deposits and receivables
Related parties (Refer Note 38)
Others
Total

20,000.00

(20,000.00)

20,000 00
20.000.00

394.71

594.71

20.000.00 N

(20.000.00)

- 0.10 010

- 0.10 0.10

20,000.00 010 010

20.000.00 R R

R 26.61 43.23
610686 - -

- 938.31 1,377.77
518.86 -

- 4.348.45 4,010.72

- 150.60 59.80

616.86 5,982.83 5,491.58

*Derivative mstruments at fair value through profit or loss reflect the positive change in fair value of those foreign exchange forward contracts that are not designated in hedge
relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended to reduce the level of foreign currency risk for expected sales and purchascs.

7. Other assets

Unsecured. considered good
Capital advances
Advances other than capital advances
Advance to a related party (Reter Note 34)
Advance to suppliers
Emplovees and other advances
Prepaid expenses
Goods and Services Tax (GST) refund receivable
Balance with statutory/ government authorities

Unsecured. Credit impaired

Advances other than capital advances
Advances to United Breweries (Holdings)
Limited

Balance with statutory/ government authorities

Less: Provision tor inpairment ot other asset

total

313.07

1,668.20

(1,668.20)

627.64

935.87 - -
- - 1.980.00
- 181.52 185.19
- 5.73 19.64
35040 1,446.95 1,773.22
- 8,929.24 2,442.30
- 2,471.50 3.893.32
1,286.27 13,034.94 10,293.67
[,608.20 - -
- 1,155.22 1,192.26
(1,668.20) (1,155.22) (1,192.26)
13.034.94 10,293.67

(a) There are no advances to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or advances to firms or private companies,

respectively, in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

(b) The GST authorities have denied and recalled refund of certain GST credits and the Board of Directors of the company, based on the legal opinion. consider that the refunds are in
accordance with the law, the matter is currently sub-judice and no quantification is made.




As at
March 31,2023

As at
March 31,2022

8. Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net reahisable value)

Raw matenals and packing matenals 13831 83
[mcludes mwansit - INR 968 84 Lakhs (March 312022 INR 7.847 92 Lakhs)}
Work-m-prouress

Fimshed yoods
Traded goods [mcludes mtransit INR Nib (March 31, 2022 INR Nl Lakhsy)
Stores and spares [includes m wransit INR 30 63 Lakhs (March 31,2022 INR 92 87 Lakhsy)

2039517

3527
18,430 38
150 40

3937140

Total adil13.90

4297747

Durmg the vear,an amount of INR N Previous vew INR 119 37 Luklis) was tecommsed s an expense tor mventories camried at net realisable values

Refer Note 19 for detads of charge

9. Trade receivables

Trade recenvables 0743983
Recesvables from related pattes (Reter Note 38) 8284 41
Total 75,724.26

Break-up for security details:

Trade receivables

Secured. considered zood 4073 37 4311 00
Ensecured. considered good 71048 89 62197 11
Trade Recevables wiich have siomificant merease m eredat risk - -
Trade Recevables - credit mipasred | 040 01 1,737 25
77.370.87 68,2-HLO2
ITmpairment Allowance {allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Recervables which have stamificant mcerease m eredt risk - -
Trade Recevables - credit impared (1,040 61) (1,737 23)
75,724.26 66,502.77

ta) Trade recervables include concession subsidy recen able from the Government of India of INR 63.338 47 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 INR 37,079 74 Lakhs)

(b) No debts are due from dwectars or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jomthy with anv other petson Also. no debts are due from firms or private

companies. respectively, i which any director 1s a partner or a director or a member

(¢) Trade recenables from dealers tother than related parties) are non-mterest bearmg durmng normal credi period and are generally on terms of 13 1o 120 davs Management 1s of” the

view that there are no recen

(dy For terms and condioons relatng to related party recervahles, refer Note 38

ie) Trade recervables Agemy Schedule

Az at March 31,2023

Outstandig for followmy pertods from due date of pa\'n}c;; B
Cureent hat not o months - |
N Less than & Months fenths 1-2 vears 23 years More than 3 vears Total
due* year i
Undisputed Trade Recevables — considered good 17370 47 20.574 80 130 56 011 2729 17 5793 11 72810 26
Undisputed Trade Recervables - which have
stemficant merease m crede sk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade recevable - eredit impaired - - - 10 51 gu 02 1,341 08 154001
Disputed Trade recenvables - considered good - - - 201400 291400
Disputed Trade recesvables — which have
sianiticant merease in credit r1sk - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 37.376.42 26,574.89 136.56 216.62 5,732.19 7,.334.19 77,370.87
* Inctudes unbilled subsidy outstanding of INR 31,776 03 Lakhs
Asat March 31, 202z
Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Current but not o months — 1 .
e . M Less than o Months ons 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
duc** yeal i X
Undisputed Trade Recevables - considered good 1971738 S70m 1787 3.079 71 116778 N £3.588 77
Undisputed Trade Recervables - which have
swnificant inerease n credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade recenvable - credit impaired R - - 6 20 503 91 1169 14 173725
Disputed Trade receivables - considered vood - - - 291400 - - 291400
Disputed Trade receivables — which have
sigmificant inerease i credit risk - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — credst impaired - - - - - -
Total 49,712.38 5,711.03 17.87 6,957.91 4.671.69 1,169.14 68,240.02

** Includes unbalfed substdy outstanding of INR 3 ')f’S 80 Lakhs

(1) Refer Note 19 for details of charze




As at As at

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
10, Cash and cash equivalents
Batances with banks
- On current accounts 3.302 09 8235440
= On deposits accounts with ortzinal matniny of theee months o less 2907300 39950 00
Cash o hand 220 280
Total 32,979.95 48,207.20
Cash and cash equivalent balances don 't melude sy amounts which are not avaliable for use by the Company
11. Other baak balances
Bank balances on unpad dividend accounts® H19 40 122100
Buank deposits wath vssenad smatucds of 12 imonths o less but more than 3 months 52 200000
Maram money deposits 3480 72 539219
Total 3,605.39 7,514.35
* The Company can utihse these balances onlv towards setdement of respectin e unpard dividend amounes
Rreak up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Trade recevables (Refer Note 9y - - 5724 20 60,502 77
Cash and cash equanvalents (Refer Note 10} - - 3207995 48,207 20
Other bank balances (Reter Note 11) - - 3,003 39 7.514 33
Others (Reter Note 6) 016 8o 593622 544835
Total 616.86 1,18,265.82 1,27,672.67
12, Equitv share capital
Authorised share capital
124000000 (March 31, 2022 124000000 equity shares of INR 10 each 12,400 00 12,400 00
0,006,000 (March 31,2022 6,00,000) 13% redeemable cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each OO0 G0 HU0 30

13.000.00 13,000.00
Issued shares
12,0000 044 (March 31,2022 12 00 00 044) equaty shares of INR 10 each 12,000.00 12,000 60

12,000,000 12.000.00
Subscribed and fully paid-up shares
TH83 15,150 (March 31, 2022 11.85,15.130) equuty shares of INR 10 each 1183152 11,851 52
Forfewted shares ramount orgmally pard-up) 335 335

11,854.87 11.854.87
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Nos INRn Lakhs Nos INR i Lakhs

At the bemning of the vear 118313130 11,831 52 11,83.15.150 1185152
Changes durmy the vear - - - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,85,15,130 11,851.52 11,85,13,150 11,851.52

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares sssued and pard-up having a par value of INR 10 per share Each holder of equuity share 15 ehaible for one vote per share: The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors 15 subject to the approval o' the shareholders in the ensumy Annual General Meetng

In the wrent of liquidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be enutled to recsive remaming agsets of the Company, atter distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be 1 proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(¢) Details of sharehotders holding more than 3% of the shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022

Nos % Nos “o

Equury shares of INR 19 each tully paid
Zuart Agro Chenicals Lamrted
(Holdmye Companvy

040283062 5403% 0.40,28,362 3403%




{dy Details of Shares held by Promoters of the Companvy

As at March 31,2023

No. of shares at the Chaage No. of shares at o, change during

Promoter name beginning of the during the the end of the %% of Total Shurcs (hc:‘ﬁﬂl' -
year vear year -

Shradha Asarwala 2,050,000 - 206,000 [E0 AP 00000y
Jvotsna Poddar 157152 - L3752 G13% GO0,
Gaurav Asarwala 1.50.000 - 1,30000 0130, 0000,
Akshay Poddar 12.18.503 1839 1402431 118%, 010°
Zuary Agro Chemicals Laimred 64028302 - 302 3430, 000,
Adventz Fmance Private Limited 43 303061 - 301 ERCYAN B0,
United Breweries Holdmes Linsed - - - DRV ) 00%
Kmutisher Finvest hadeg Linted - - - Gy GO0,
Medowell Holdmes Lumited 1257180 - 7180 1 962, 0000,
Zuary Industnies Liited 300004 - o194 0 26%, 0000,

Total 7,16,67,758 1,83.928 7,18,51,686 60.63%

As at March 31,2022

No. of shares at the Change No. of shares at o .
- . . . - o change during
Promoter name begiuning of the during the the end of the % of Total Shares the:'ear >
year year year k
Shradha Agarwalta 2.00.000 - 2.00.000 G170 000°%,
Jvotsna Poddar 137152 - 157152 113%, 000,
Craurav Aganvala 150000 - 130,000 0137 000,
Akshav Poddar 2,39 354 ) 1218503 1.03%, 1229
Zuan Agro Chenneals Linted 64128 302 - a40.28 302 54030, 000°,
Adventz Finance Private Limited 40,73 301 2756000 43.30.301 3070, 0 23%,
United Brewenes Holdings Limited - - - N0, 0O,
Kmutisher Finvest India Limined - - - 0003, 1002
Medowelt Holdines Limuted ARG - 12,537 18 10009y 000,
Zuan Industries Limited 3,00 194 - 300,194 11207, 3000,
Total 7,11,33,614 534,144 7,16,67,758 60.47%
As per records of the Company. the above sharcholding represents legal ownership of shares
No shares have been issued for consideration other than cash for a period of five vears mmediatelv preceding the reporting date
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

13. Other equity
Capital redemption reserve
Balance as per last fimancial statements 180 78 480 78
Chanues durmy the vear -
Closma balance 480.78 480.78
General reserve
Balance as per fast financial statements 53857 33857
Changes during the vear - -
Closing batance 5,385.71 5,385.71
Retained earnings®
Balance as per last fmancial statements 3058503 43,004 92
Add Profit for the vear 13 403 31 8,785 13
Add Other comprehensive (loss)income {31 30 (2027
Less Appropriations

Final equity dividend famount per share Re 1 20 Previous vear Re {00 per share)] 142218 118515
Closing balance 62,597.46 50,585.63
Total Other Equity 6R 463 93 36.432.12

*Inctudes INR 3,762 19 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 INR 3.831 33 Lakhs) relaung w revaluation of property. plant and equipment




Distribution made and proposed As at As at

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Dividends on equiy shares declared and paid
Dividend for the vear ended March 31,2022 Re 1 20 per share .
. 142218 PARS S
(Previous year Re 100 per share)
1,432.18 1,185.15
Proposed dividends on equity shares
Diidend tur the vear ended March 312623 Re | 30 per share 1777 73 1422108
77773
(Previous year Re 120 per share)
1,777.73 1,422.18
Proposed dividend on equity shares 1s subject o approval at the annual general meetng and 1s not recogmsed as a frabiliy as at vear end
i4. Non-current borrowings
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Secured (at amorttsed cost)
Indran currency ternt Joans trom banks 44887 30 2827075
Indsar currency vehiele loans trom bank 3128 ilo
44,938.78 28.274.91
Unsecured (at amorused cost)
Foreran currency term foans from bank - 33297
Total 44,938.78 28,607.88
Less Amount disclosed under the head "Current
Borrowinus" (Refer Note 1) (9,271.23) (5,792 73)
Total 35,667.55 21,815.13

Secured borrowings

1 loans

Term loan from a bank of INR 1997 4o Lakhs tmeluding current maturities of INR 1,997 4o Lakhs) [March 31, 2022 INR 3.988 61 Lakhs (including current matunves of INR | 996 37
Lakhs)] carnes mterest i the range of 8 00% pa [March 31, 2022 8 0% pa to 11 30% p a | The loan 1s repayable m 20 equal quarterly mstallments startimg from June 2019 wath the
fast nstalment due on March 2024 The Toan s secured by first pari-pasu charge on all movable and mmaovable fived assets falongwith working capnal lenders) other than fived assets

exclusivelv charged to other lenders

Term loan from a bank of INR 1.495 80 Lakhs rincluding current maturives of INR 1495 80 Lakhs) [March 31, 2022 INR 2,486 83 Lakhs (including current matursties of INR 996 31
arting from June 2010

1t akhs)| carres interest in the range o 9 30%¢ pa o 10 80% pa March 31,2022 9 30%% pa 10 9 35% p a | The foan s repavable w 20 quarterly mstallments

with the last nstalment due on March 2024 The loan 1s secured by first pari-pasu charge on atl movable and immovable fixed assets. both present and future (other than fived assets

exclusively charged w other fenders) and second pan-passu charge on all cusrent assets both present and futuse

Term foan from a bank of INR Ndl (mncluding current maturities of INR Nil Lakhs) {March 31,2022 INR 3921 78 Lakhs (including current maturities of INR 3,196 08 Lakhs)} carnies
mterest n the range off 0 962 pa 10 9 70% pa [March 31,2022 620% pa 1o 696% pa] The loan 1s repayable m 13 quarterly mstallments starting from December 2019 with the
last mstalment due o February 2024 The loan 1s secured by first parspassu first charge over all movable and immovable fixed assets mcluding plant and machmery of the Company
(excludmg assets exclusively charged to other banks) and first pan-passu with anv other security provided to any other lenders mcluding workmy capitad lenders

Term toan from a bank of INR 156,962 30 Lakhs (mcludmg current maturies of INR 121202 Lakhs) [March 31, 2022 INR 3316 21 Lakhs (meludimg current maturinies off INR Ny
carries nierest n the range off 9 95% pato 1030% pa [March 31,2022 995% pa] The loan 15 repavable n 28 quarterty mstallments statng from November 2023 with the Jast
mstalment due on August 2030 The loan 15 secured by first pan-passu first charge on movable fixed assets to be ereated from proceeds of the facility for wmprovement m Energy
Efficiency Project of the urea plant. with other participating fenders and first pars passu charge over all movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company excluding those exclusively

charged to other term fenders

Term toan from a bank of INR 7.103 09 Lakhs (mcludmyg current matunties of INR 1,037 60 Lakhs) [March 31, 2022 INR 3 408 12 Lakhs (includimyg cwirent maturities of [INR 207 80
artmg from March 2023 with the

Lakhs)] carnes mterest o the range of 10 00° pato 1095 pa [March 31, 2022 1000% p a ] The loan 15 repavable n 28 quarterly mstallments s
last mstalment due on December 2029 The loan 15 secured by trst pari-passu first charge on all fixed assets o be created out of the proposed EIP project. with other pacticipaung
lenders and first part passu charge over all movable and mmovable fixed assets of the Company excluding the fixed assets charged speaifically to the term lenders

Term foan trom a bank of INR 3,283 38 Lakhs (ncludmyg current maturities of INR 118 61 Lakhs) [March 31, 2022 INR 3 242 40 Lakhs tmcluding cwrrent maturiuies of INR Nily]
from Januacry 2024 with the fase

carries nterest i the range of 9 3%y pa w 1035% pa {March 31 2022 9350% pa | The loan 1s repavable i 28 quarterty mstailmen
mstalment due on October 2030 The Toan 15 secured by first pari-passu first charge on movable fixed assets to be created from proceeds of the

Efficiency Progect of the urea plant, with other participating lenders and first part passu charge over movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company excluding those exclusively

ity for improvement m Energy

charged to other term lenders

Term loan from a bank of INR 3931 39 Lakhs tincluding current matunties of INR 657 49 Lakhs) [March 31, 2022 INR 3,907 80 Lakhs (includmyg current matuniues of INR Nily|

aliments starting from August 20623 with the last

carries interest m the range of 8 63% pa 0 9 70% pa [March 31, 2022 §063% pa] The loan 1s repavable m |8 guarterly s

mstalment due on November 2027 The foan 1s secured by first pari-passu first charge over movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company. excluding those exclusively charged

o other term lenders ¢mcluding long term lpan
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Term loan from a bank of INR 4926 43 Lakhs ticludmg current maturities of PNR Nt [Mareh 31,2022 INR Nt (nciuding current matunties of INR Niby] carres mterest rate of
893% pa [March 312022 Nol?5 pa ] The loan 1s repayable i 10 quarterly mstallments starting from April 2024 with the fast wistalment due on Julv 2026 The loan 1s secured
1irst pan-passu first charge over movable and immovable fived assets of the Company, excludimng those exclusin alv charged to other term lenders tneludimg long e loans asuled for

the energy efficiency capital expenditure)

Term loan from a bank of INR 2470 52 Lakhs mcfudimg curtent maturties of INR Niby [ March 312022 INR Ni fincluding current matunities of INR Nih] carres mterest rate of
opa [March 31,2022 NalYapa} Fhe loan s repayvable in 13 quatterly mstallments starting from September 2024 wath the last mstalment due on March 2028 The loan 15

secured by first par-passu first charge over movable and immovable fived assets of the Company excluding those exclusively charged to other term lenders Gneluding long term foans

avarled tor the energy etficiency capital expenditure)

Term loan from a bank of INR 2717 41 Lakhs tmelnding coreent mamenies of INR 2717 41 [akhs) [ Macch 312022 INR NI (inctuding current maturites of INR N1l carres nterest
rate of 9 00% pa [March 312022 Nil %o pa The loan 1s tepavable m monthly mstallments starhing trom Apnl 2023 with the fast mstalment due on February 2624 The loan 15

secured by st pan=passuc fnst el ge vver movable and mmovable fived assets of the Company both present and future. excluding those exclussely charged o ather term lenders

Indian cu vehugle foans
Vehicle loans from a bank of INR 31 28 Lakhs (includmg current maturivies of INR 14 84 Lakhsy [March 31, 2022 INR 3 15 Lakhs {meludmg current maturities of INR 3 1o Lakhsy]
catty nterest 468 30%0 pa 10 9 35% pa [March 312922 8 30% p a ] The loan 13 repavable m 30 1o 48 monthh mstaliments starting from Juh 2018 with the st mstalment due on

September 2020 and 15 secured by fivst pari-passu charge on fixed assets fivanced by the smd term loans

Unsecured borrowings

Foreign currency term aans
Term Joan from a bank off INR Nl cncluding current maturities of INR Nid) {March 310 2022 INR 33297 Lakhs Gneludimg curent maturities of INR 332 97 Lakhs)) carries fised
whng from August 2010 with the tast mstallment due on Februan: 2023 The loan s

mterest of 140% pa {March 31,2022 1 40% p a | The Joan 15 repavable i 14 equal mstallments s
secured by guarantee issued by Eksport Kredit Fonden ple (EKF), the state owned export eredit agency of Denmark

15. Lease Liabilities

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Lease labilities {Refer Note 33) 1,886 i) 2068 09 3607 43 o6
86.60 2,068.09 36.07 45.66
16. Financial liabilities - Others
Noun-current Current
As at As at As at As at
Murch 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Fiancral babbues at fair value throush profit or loss

Dervauves not desiunated as hedges - 1514 498 94
Emancial habiies at amortised cost
Liabtlities for capnal woods - - 33772 4353843
Interest accrued but not due on horrowings
and others - - 32727 17455
Security deposits - - 324419 313873
Payable to Gas pool operator 311988 311705
Emplovee benefits pavable - - 760 75 8018 30
Other expenses pavable - - 2,604 02 2067430
Topaed diwadend* 119 40 2210
Total - 15.14 12,820.50 17,072.72
*1here are no amounts due tor pavment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under the Companies Act, 2013 as at vear end
t7. Provisions
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Provision tor emplovee benefits

Granuy (Refer Note 273 1.180 60 113473 HIG 49 13403

Compensated absences - - Lo s 893 91
Total 1,180.60 1,134.73 1,117.67 1,027.96




18. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss

As at
March 31,2023

As ut
March 31,2022

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year eaded
March 31,2022

Deterved t

Property, pt nd equipment, Right-of-use assets 1291001 9,260 06 303033 (14060 93)

and Intangible assets fmpact of ditference between

T \1(‘)1] ecanom JHII «1(‘[)! 2eANoN amaetisaton

charged for the fimancial reporting

Others 12023 41 o2 91 28

9.380.29 3,698.24 (975.67)

Aflowance tor doubtiul recesvables 4 o7 (22 o {2318)

Provision for eratwty and compensated absences 378 47 3412 1698

Lease Liabuiy 491 39 (303N (7hh

Others Jad o8 119 41 230

Mainmmum Alternate Tax ("MAT"y eredie enutlement 1979 20 238074 £3.283 72)
67 2,655.08 (3,294.6T)

Net deferved tax liabiliey 6,149.86

Deferred tax charge /{credit} 1,043.16 2.319,00

B

ed on the profitabilny projecuons, the man:

credit enutlement Accordmgiyv. deterred tax asset have been recogiised on the same  Afso Refer Note 31

Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax liabilities (net)

Balance at the beagnmma of the vear 3100 70
Tax charge feredity durmg the vear

2787 70

Recowmsed m profitand toss 1.000 08 232988
Recognmised m OCT (1692) (1088}
104310 1000

Batance at the end of the vear 6,149.86 ,106.70

19. Current borrowings

Secured borrowings
Foretun currency buver's ~ suppliers’ credit from banks

Asaf
March 31,2023

sement 13 confident that there would be sufficient taxable profits m futare which will enable the Company 1o utilize the aforesaid MAT

As at
March 31, 2002

494

48137 89

ndian currency bitls discounted with banks RIS Y] Y
Cuerent maturities of long-term borrowmus (Retfer Note 14 9.271 23 ©.439 78
1,00,029.37 1.09,342.06
Unsecured borrowings
Current matuniues ot long=term borrowangs {Refer Note 14} - 33297
Indian currency short-term loans trom banks -
- 3,004.41
Total 1,00,099.37 1,12,346.47

Secured borrowings

The facihties are secured by Oirst pari-passu charge on all cwrent assets (both present and futare) and property, plant and equipment of the Company.

excluding assets which are

exclusively charged o other tenders These facihites are repayable within 12 months period The mierest carmed on these facilities are - buvers:suppliers credits 037% to 3 38% pa
[March 31,2022 032% 10 236% pa, bills discounted 4 40%0 10 7 30% pa [March 31,2022 440°5 10 6 10% pa |, cash credit 8 73%5 to 11 43% pa [March 31, 2022 875% 10

1o ¥ pa

Uusecured butiuwings

The shost-term loans are repayable over a matusity period of 43 10 90 davs and carry floatng mterest rate of § 3% 10 9 00% pa [March 31,2022 7 30%t0 8 3Py pa]

The quarterly returns or statements of cwrrent assets filed by the Company with banks or financial mstitutions are in agreement with the books of accounts

LAHGALORE !




20. Trade pavables

Trade payables

- total outstandme dues of micro eaterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 363

- totaf vutstandmg dues of creditors other than miere enterprises and small enterprises

Trade pavables
Trade pavables to related pauties (Refer Note 33)
Total

Hncludes outstandinmg dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 36 for details)

For explanations on the Company s eredit risk manasement processes. refer Note -+t

Trade pavables tother than related partiest are normatly nor-mterest bearmy and are settled on 30 w 90 days term For Terms and condition for related paties refer

[rade payables Agemy Schedule

As at March 31, 2023

As at
March 31,2023

As at
March 31,2022

4382 oi
19671 70

1057 85
39419 30

24,237 36

40.477.21

20448 02
3,809 54

400420 20
3701

24,257.36

40,477.21

Outstanding tor following periods from du

e date of pavment

note 3R

Unbilled Not Due [,esi ”:;m I 12 vears 2-3 years More than 3 vears Totwal
o
Total vutstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterpreses** - 4,381 99 - - - a7 438200
Total outstandimg dues of creditars other than mecro
enterprises and small enterprises 32576 18,940 27 38417 740 033 1673 19.674 70
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Total 323.76 23.522.26 384.17 7.40 0.35 17.42 24,257.36
*7 Ouistanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises for more than 3 vears of INR 0167 lakhs pertains tonterest provided i earler vears
As at March 31, 2022
Qutstandimg for following periods from due date of pavment
Cnbilled Nut Due l..es;s‘ [I;:‘m ! 1-2 yews 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
i
Total outstandmg dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises* ¢ - 1.03713 - - 067 1,057 33
Total vutstanding dues of ereditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprses 145 80 3820773 [N Y 360 183 3907 3941930
Dusputed dues of micro enterprises and smalt
enterprises - - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other tan nacio
enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
1otal 145.80 39.264.91 1,021.67 3.66 .83 40.34 40,477.21
***Oustandmg dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises for more than 3 vears of INR 0 07 lakls pertains to mterest provided m carher years
As at As at

21. Other curvent liabilities

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Statutory dues pavable 33929 37023
Contract lrabitities - Advances from customers®* 1601 93 137248
Total 1,941.22 1,742.73
#¥Res enue recogniied from amaunts mehuded o conteact lalnlities at the Leygntning vittdie vew s PNROTL203 71 Lukhs (March 31, 2 INR 430 54 Lakhsy
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Non-current Current
As at As at As at

As at

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Non Current Borrowines ( Refer Note 14)
Lease Labihties (Refer Note 13)
Current Borrowmys (Refer Note 19)
Trade Pavables (Refer Note 20)

Others (Refer Note 10}

Total

2181313
2068 00

33,607 53
i.880 00

23.883.23

3007 435 60
1,00,.000 37 11234647
24257 30 4047721
12008 20 16,573 78
1,36,961.09 1,69,443.12




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

22. Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of products tincluding concession subsidy on fertilisers)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Manufactured 34144433 2.79.630.13
Traded 2247112 94 94
Sale of services 552 9 .64
Other operating revenues (scrap sales) 231.43 163.59

Total

(&)

Disaggregated revenue information

Manufactured

2.89,558.30

Urea 1.79.677.75 1.65.278.43
Complex fertilizers 1.52.835.52 1.05.009 67
Others §.931.00 Y.342 03
3.41.444.33 2,79,630.13
Fraded
Complex fertilizers 1967413 -
Muriate of Potash { MOP) - 6.558.46
Others 2.796.97 319648
22,471.12 9,754.94
(by Timing of revenue recognition
Products transterred for a point in time 3.64.146.88 2.89.548.66
Services rendered at a point in time 5.52 9.64
3.64,152.40 2,89,558.30
(¢) Reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised with contract price
Revenue as per contracted price tincluding concession - subsidy on fertilisers) 3.72.027.46 293.732.20
Adjustments
Rebates {7.568.82) (3,823.36)
Others (306.24) (348.5)
Revenue from contracts with customers 3,64,152.40

(d) Performance obligation
The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods at the point in ume when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and pavment is generally due within 15 to 120 dayvs from delivery

The Direct Benefit Transfer (DBT) Scheme entails 100% pavment of subsidy to the Company on the basis of actual sales by the retailer to the beneficiary. however. the
performance obligation of the Company 1s satisfied upon delivery uf the gouds.

(e) Sales of products include government concession * subsidies amounting  to INR 268,770.17 Lakhs (Previous year: INR 196.363.31 Lakhs) . The urea concession has
been estimated and accounted as per the Government of India notification dated June 17, 2015 and the subsidy on phosphatic and complex fertilisers has been
accounted based on estimates and on the rates announced by the Government of India under Nutrient Based Subsidy Policy. as applicable.

() Government of India has notified the pooling of Gas in Fertiliser (Urea) sector effective from June 2015, As per the notification. domestic Gas is pooled with
Regasified Liquetied Natural Gas (RLNG) to provide natural Gas at uniform delivered price to all Natural Gas Grid connected Urea manufacturing plants,

(g) The Company had during the year ended March 31, 2021 recognised urea subsidy income of INR 2,914 Lakhs without benchmarking its cost of production using
naphtha with that of gas-based urea manufacturing units recently converted o natural oas as natified hy the Department of Fertilizers [DoF] for subsidy income
computation, against which the Company had filed a writ petition against the DoF before the Hon 'ble High Court of Delhi [DHC]. Pending finalization of writ petition
before the DHC. the management. based on legal opinion and considering the fact that the energy cost is always a pass through in subsidy computation, believes that

artficial benchmarking is arbitrary and discriminatory and 1s confident of realisation of the aforesaid subsidy income.

(h) For details of contract balances. refer Notes 9 and-21, Als -refer Note 39 for segment information




23. Other income

Interest income on bank deposits and others
Rental mcome

Insurance claim received

Provisions no longer required written back*
Other non-operating income

Total

* Includes Provision tor impatment of GST credit of previous years 1

Fakhs [Previous year - Provision for imparment of Trade Receivable written back INR 86 31 Lakhs]

24. Cost of materials consumed

Inventortes at the beginning of the vear
Add. Purchases during the vear

Less: Inventories at the end of the vear
Cost of materials consumed

Phosphoric acid

Imported ammoma

Others

Total \

25, Purchases of traded goods

Complex ferulizers
Murrate of Potash ¢ MOP)
Others

Total

26.Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Inventories at the beginnmg of the vear
Finished goods
Traded goods
Work-in-progress

Less. Inventories at the end of the vear
Fimshed goods
traded goods
Work-i-progress

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

27. Emplovee benefits expense

Salaries. wages and bonus

Gratuity expense frefer note (1) below}

Contribution to provident and ather funds frefer note (iii) below]
Staff weltare expenses

Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

11236
350
38908
3544

3,0

For the year ended
March 31,2023

2039517
19308218
13851 83

7842133
62.988.49
36.591.70
2162380
1,99,625.32

22.862.00

18.439.38

1.830.61
4,735 43

196.73
6.782.77

6.078 43
149.99
419 90
20886

6,917.18

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1.928. 40
10927
ton
34370

4203

2,427.06

cd INR 37 04 Lakhs and Provision tor Tmpaicment of Trade Reciey abe wiitten back Rs 90,64

For the vear ended
March 31,2022

8.846.30
198,483 47
20.395 17

7432692
08.098 23
2733862
16,970 89
1,.86,93

[8.439.38

30 49
3527
18.025.14
13,122.69)

399991
180 14
42399

1) The Code on Social Scewrity. 2020 £Codl™ ) aclating o empluyee benelits teceived Presidentinl assent in Septeimber 2020, However. effective date and the final rules

merpretation have not vet been notitied issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code and recognize the same. if any. once the Code comes it effect

(1) The Company operates defined benefit plan i.e.. gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, even emplovee who has completed at least five vears of service uefs
a gratuity on departure at 15 days of fast drawn salary for each completed year of service. The fund has the form of a trust and it 15 governed by the Board of Trustees
who s responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the detinition of the investment strategy




The following table summarises the components of net benelit expenses and the funded status for the plan

(a) Cost charged o the statement of profit or loss under emplovee cost
Current service cost

Interest cost

Return on plan ass

Net employee benefit expense

(b) Re-measurentent togs) wain recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (oss) gam
Change in financial and demographic assumptions
Expertence varanee tactual vs assumption}
Actuarial (lossy on assets
Net actuarial (loss)/gain

() Changes in the present value of the defined benefit oblization

Obhgations at begimning of the vear
Current service cost

[nterest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (loss)

Obligations at end of the year

(dy Change 1 far value of plan assets

Plan assets at the beginning of the year
Return on plan assets

Contributtons duning the vear

Benefits paid

\ctuarial tloss)

Plan assets at end of the vear

(e) Benefit asset thabilitv)

Fam value of plan assets
Less: Present value of detined benetit obhigations
Benefit (liabilitv)

() Majon categony ul plas assets tnctuded o fan value of plan assets

Fund balance with insurance companies
Total

() The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company plan are ¢
Discount rate

Salary increase rate

Employee turnover

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1104
(3714
(232

(48.42)

139512
8441
1107
(2062 86)
16 10
1,363.84

126 34
w13
2006 44
(262 .80)
(2.32)

76,

7675
136384
(1,287.09)

7073
76.75

shown below

7 43%
6.30°0-8.00%
t 00°5-3.00%

98.32
11a2
(30 10)
180.14

4443
{03 33)
(12.03)
(31.15)

1.639 21
98 32
a2

(493 43)
1910

446 30
00
15542
(493 43)
(1203
126.34

126.34

7.25%
6.50°-8.00%
1 00°,-3.00%

The estimates of future salary increases. considered in actuarial valuation. take account of inflation. seniority. promotion and other relevant factors. such as supply and
demand in the employment market. The overall rate of return on assets s determined based on the market price prevailing on that date. applicable w the period over

which the obligauon is to be settled.




(ht A guantitative senstavity analvsis for stgnificant assumption 1s as below

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

0.3% increase

0.3% decrease

Impact on defined benetit obliga
Discount rate

Salary mcrease rate

Employee turnover

Murtality rate

(3730 6243
6225 (37 84
608 (682
034 {031

(5641
61.27
442

023

6129
(36 8
(301
t022)

The sensitivity analvsis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benetit obligation as a result of reasonable change m key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period

(1) The followmyg pavments are expected contribution to the defined benetit plans in futwre vears

Withm next 12 months
Between 2 to 3 vears
Between 6 to [0 vears
More than 10 vears
Total

The average duratton of the defined benetit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period vear 15 9 vears (March 31,2022 9 vears)

ity Contribution to provident and other funds includes the followmng detined contributions:

Provident tund

Superanmuation fund and navonal pension scheme
Others

Total

28, Finance costs

Interest expense

Interest on lncome Tax

Interest on Leases (Refer Note 33)

Exchange difference regarded as adjustment to borrowing cost
Other borrowmg costs

Total

29. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property. plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Amortisation of mtanzble assets

Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

204 43
144.72

10.73
419.90

(
1.337.52
17349

10,437.76

5.802.28
11194
53.28

5,967.50

206040
34254
41603
993 13

For the vear ended

March 31, 2022

267 62
4119

1518
423.99

2.850.89
68.00
216.30
83613
Yn% KX

4,940.42

487361




For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

30. Other expenses
Consamputon of stores and spares 89230 88233
Power. firel and water 06.380.91 57.756 87
Bagwing and other contracung charges 775064 806 43
Transportatic 10300 82 1143720
Repairs and maintenance

Buildimgs 130 44 16042

Plant and equipment 273975 2 468.60

Others 062901 649 58
Rent 478 43 343 10
Rates and taxes 1948 940
Insuwrance 790 40 7238}
Travelling and conveyance 24514 176 91
Net loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 32196 54870
Director’s sitting fees 2503 2390
Auditors remuneration ireter details betow) 33356 4113
CSR expenditure trefer note 374 21000 15273
Foreign exchange difterences (net) 1.800.69 242603
Miscellanieous expenses 2 804 96 2.

Total

Pavment to Auditors

As Audnor

Statutory audit fee 17.00 2200
Limited review fee 9,75 11.25
In other capacity

Certification fees 600 673
Others tincluding raimbursement of expenses) 0381 013
Total 33.56 40.15

31. Tax expenses
{ncome 1ax refated to items charged or credited to statement ot protit and loss during the vear

Profit and loss section

Current tax (Minimum Alternate Tax) 3.077 .00 2330000
Deterred tax charge/(credit)
MAT credit wiihisaton taccumulation) (2.380.74) 328372
Deferred tax charge for prior vears (1.25) (16021
Deferred tax credit on others 304207 (793.63)
Total 4,137.08 4,679.88

Deferred tax expense for the vear mcludes deterred tax charge (eredity refating to prior vear recognized towards true-up adjustment on fhng of meome tax returns by the
Company

Other comprehensive income

Deterred tax {credity charge on re-measurement of detined benetit plan (16.92) (10.88)
Total (16.92) {10.88)

Reconciliaton of 1ax expense with accounung profit multuphied by statutory mcome tax rate:

Accounting profit before income tax 17,602.59 13,466.01
Tax as per statutory incone tax rate of 34.94% (Previous pertod: 34.94%0) 6,131 03 4.703.56
Non-deductible expenses tor tax purposes

CSR expenditure 7338

Unreahised foreign exchange gam on capital items -

Deferred tax charge for prior vears (125

Other non-deductible expenses 23382
Impact of change in tax rate tor future pertods* {2.309.92)
[ncome tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss account 4,137.08
Effective tax rate 23.50%

* Management has assessed the utilization of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) on the basis of future profitability projections. Further, the management also assessed it to be
probable that post utilization of MAT the Company will be exercising option to pay Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provistons conditions defined in the new Section
113BAA 0 the Ineome Tax Act. 1961, serted vide the Taxaton Laws ( Amendment) Ordinance 2019




For the year ended

March 31, 2023

32. Earnings per share (EPS)

The followng reflects the profit and share data used m the basic and dituted EPS computation

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 13465 31
Weighted average number of equuty shares considered for caleulating basic diluted EPS IS5 15450
Earnings per share (Basic/Diluted) 11.36

33. Leases

The Company as a lessee

For the vear ended

March 31,2022

8.786.13
RS 15,150
7.41

I'he Company has tease contracts tor land. buildings and anks. The leases for land generally have fease terms between | to 30 vears. while others generally have lease tens
between 1 to 6 years. The Company’s obligations under its [eases are secured by the lessor's ttle o the feased assets. Generally. the Company is restricted from assigning and

sub-leasmng the leased assets. There are several tease contracts that include extension and termination options. which are further discussed below

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases with low value The Company applies the “short-term lease” and “lease of low-value

assels’ recognition exemptions for these leases

Reter Note 3B for details of carrving amounts of right-of=use assets recognised and the movements during the vear Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease labilites
tmeluded under interest-bearmg borrowings) and the movements during the vear

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

At the beginning of the vear 211375 213412
Additions - 15.89
Leases terminated (137 49) -
Accretion of et est 20205 216 30
Pavmients 1235.64) 35276
At the end of the vear 1.922.67 2,113
Current 36.07 13,66
Non-current 1.8806.60 2.068.09

The matunty analvsis of lease liabilities are disclosed m Note 41(¢) The following are the amounts recognised m the statement of protit or loss

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 11194 128 04
Interest expense on Jease habihties 202 05 21630
Expense relating to short-term leases tincluded m rent expense) A7843 3310
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss 792.42 887.64

The Company had twtal cash outflows for leases of INR 71407 Lakbs (Previous yeur INR 793 86 Lakhsi. The Company also bad non-cash additions 1o right-of-nse assers
and lease liabilities of INR Nil (Previous year 13.89 Lakhs)

The Company has several lease contracts that melude extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide tlexibility in managing the
teased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises signiticant judgement in determining whether these extension and Lermination

sed.

options are reasonably certain to be exe

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities 15 10%o, with maturity between 2023-2042

There are no future rental payments relating o pertods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are not mcluded in the lease term

For the year ended

March 31,2023

Expense relating to leases of fow-value assets -

Expense refating to short-term leases 78.67
Variable lease payments 399 76

Total Lease Pavments not considered as Lease pavrients under Ind AS 116 478.43

For the year ended

March 31,2022

7526




The Company. as a lessor
The Company has entered into cancellable operating leases in respect of a portion of its land and building. These leases have terms of between 10 vears and above. The

leases include a clause 1o enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions. The total remts recognised as income
during the period 1s INR 112,36 Lakhs (Previous year: INR 10927 Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
34. Capital and other commitments
() Fstimated amount of contract ramaining, to he executed (net of capital advances) on capital account 322519 1401372
and not provided for
(b For commitments relating to lease arrangements. refer Note 33.
35, Contingent liabilities
tay  Clanms agamst the Company not acknowledged as debts
Income tax 358.04 35804
Excise duty 638.96 63896
Entrv tax 334.81 33481
Customs dutv 42470 402.70
Service tax 15.49 1549
Others 93.00 93 00
The mcome tax matters under appeal include certain deductions claimed by the Company for financial vears 2012-13 and 2013-14 which have resulted m tax losses, on
which deferred tax assets have been recognized and utilized against taxable profits of following vears, which have been disallowed by the income tax authorities and
the differential tax hability (deferred tax - regular tax) that may arise is estimated to be INR 3,315 Lakhs and interest thereon. The Company is contesting aforesaid
disallowances and the management, based on independent tax opinions, believes that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process and accordingly no
expense has been accerued in this regard.
The Company 1s contesting atoresaid demands and the management, based on advise of its advisors, believes that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate
process. No expense has been acerued in the financial statements for these demands raised. The management belicves that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of
the above contingent habihties
In addition, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company's management reasonably
does not expect that these legal actions. when ultimately concluded and determined. will have any matenal etfect on the Company's results of operations or tinanctal
condition
(by  Other money for which the Company is contingently liable

Bank guarantees 904.23 86496

[This space has been intentionally left blank|
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36. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSVIED) Act, 2006

For the year ended
March 31,2023

The principal amount and the mterest due thereon remaming unpaid o any supphcr as at the end of cach
accounting year

- Prmaipal amount due to micro and small enterprises® 438199
- Interest due on above 0.67
- Total 4.582.66

“Excludmg habilities tor capital goods af INR 13368 Lakhis (Marchi 31,2022 INR 845 99 Lakhs)

The amount of tterest paid by the buyer i terms of section 16 of tie MSMED Act 2006 along with the -
amounts of the payment made to the supplier bevond the appomted day during each accounting vear

The amount of meerest due and payable for the pertod of defay m making pavment (which have been pard -
but beyond the appomted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED
Act, 2006

The amount of mterest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounung period vear -
The amount of further interest remainmg due and pavable even m the succeeding vears. until such date 067

when the mterest dues as ahove are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The mformation given abuve is to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company on the basis of mformation disclosed by the suppliers

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
37. Details of CSR expenditure

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

1.037.18
067
1,057.85

0.67

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear 20971 15273
by Amount approved by the Roard to be spent durmg the year 209.71 15275
¢} Amount spent during the vear ending on 31 March 2023
Yet to be paid in .
In cash ! Total
cash

1) Construction acquisttion of any asset - - .

1) On purposes other than (1) above 210.00 - 210,00
d) Amount spent during the vear ending on 31 March 2022

Yet to be paid in .
In cash P Total
cash

1) Construction acquisition of any asset - - -

1) On purposes otlier than (1) above 15275 - 15275
¢)  Details related to spent “unspent obligatons

1) Anmtount spent 210.00 15275

1) Unspent amount in relation to:

- Ongoing project - -
- Other than ongomg project -

Total 210.00 152.75

Details of excess amount spent

In case of S, 135(5) Excess amount spent

Amount required to be spent during the Amount spent

Opening Balance
pening Balance year during the year

Closing Balance

024 20971 210.00




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

Notes to the hnd AS financial statemeuts for the vear ended March 31,2023
AL amounts i ndian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

38. Related party disclosures

Names ot refated parues

Names ot telated parties where conbal exists rrespectn e of whether transactons have sccuned or nag

Holdimg Company Zuan Aaro Chenucals Limmied ¢ ZACL™y

Comman control Paradeep Phosphates Lanuted (°PPLT)
Zuan Management Services Limted ("ZMSL")
Zuan FarmBHub Limwted ¢ ZFL7

Pramoters Promaters Choup Zuars Industries Limued
MeDowell Holdings Linited
United Brewenes Holdmas Limited
Kmgfisher Finvest India Limuted
Mis Iyotsna Poddar
Mrs Shradha Agarwala
My Gaway Agarwala

Names of ather velated parues with whom wansactons have taken place during the vear

KNev Manasement Personnel Mr Shubhabrata Saba. Manazma Duwectos (w e 1o 09 2021 wli 03 11 2022
Mr K Prabhakar Rao, Whole-time divector (udl 31 12 2021
My Nt Manuoesh Kantak Whaole-ume Drector (KNP w e £ 03 11 2022
Me T M Muraldharan, Chiet Financial Officer
Me Vinavamahantesh Khannwr, Company Secretary

Directors Mr Akshay Podda
My DA Prasanna
Ms Rita Menon
M Dipankar Chaterp (il 13 05 2022)
Me Marco Phifippus Ardestnie Wadia (w e 1113 D3 2022)
Me Nion Manuuesh Kantak (Non utne Divectorwe £ 01 01 2022 udl 0211 2022
Mr Sabaleel Nandv (w e £03 11 2022 qll 2503 2023)
Mr N Suresh Koghnan (we i 2543 2023)

Enterprises m which Lionel Tndia Linited ("LIL™Y
directors shareholders are interested Advenz Finance Private Lamited
Emplevee benefit trusts MCT Lid Emwlovees Graty Fund Trust ("MCOF Graty Trast™
MCF Lid Emplovees Superannuation Trust (“MCF Superannuaton Trust™)

Summary of transactons entered mto with related parties dunng the pertod

Holding Company Common control Key Management Personnef and  Others including Promaoters &
Directors Promoters Group
March March March Mareh Mareh 31,2023 March March 31,2023 March
31,2023 31,2022 31,2023 31,2022 31,2022 31,2022
Sale of noods (net)
ZFL - - 0991 03 417330 - - - -
PPL - - - - - - - -
- - 6,991.03 4.173.50 - - - -
Purchase of woads (net
ZFL. - - 3329 - - - - .
PPL N - 359712 107728 - - - ol
- - 3.732.41 1.077.28 - - - -
Iaterest income
ZACL 743438 1146 90 - - - - - -
ZFL - - 333 - - - - -
743.48 1,146.96 3.33 - - - - -
Ltergst expense
ZFL - - - 312 - - - -
PPL - - - | 30 - - - -
- - - 6.62 - - - -
Purchase of seivices
ZMSL - - §9 98 11261 - - - -
- - 89.98 112.61 - - - -
Travel expenses paid
LiL - - - - - - 032
- - - - - - 60.32 2398
Reimbursement of expenses by the Company
ZACL - 7239 - - - - - -
ZFL - - 1448 {3002 - - - -
PPL - - 223 - - - -
Adventz Fimance Private Limited - - - - 740 2947

- 72.39 16,73 136,02 - - 7.46 29.47




Holding Company Common control Key Management Personnel and  Others including Promoters &

Directors Promoters Group
March March March March March 31,2023 March Mareh 31,2023 March
31,2023 32022 31,2023 31,2022 32022 31,2022
Resmbursement of expenses 1o the Company
ZACL 14333 5344 - - - - - -
7T - - 2249 - - . - -
PPL. - - [TNERY 204 - - - .
143,33 53.44 22,33 2.24 - - - -
Sittma fees pad
Mo Abshay Poddar - - - - 380 - N
M DA Prsanig - - - - 530 - -
A\ Dipankar Chatterp - - - - 330 - -
Mr Suresh Krishnan . . . . 210 . N
M Rita Menon - - - - 373 330 - -
My Marco Wadia 335 - - -
Me N M Kantak - - - - [N 030
AMe Sabaleel Nandy - - - . 100 - - N
- - - - 25.05 23.90 - -
Directors’ Remuneration
Mr Akshay Podda - - - - 300 - -
Mr DA Prasanna - - - - 300 - .
My Dipankar Chatter - - - - - - -
M Suresh Knshnan - - - - - . -
Ms Rita Menon - - - - S0 - -
Me Marco Wadia 430 - -
Me Niun M Kantak - - - - 292
B f - . 2242 - .
Dividend pard on eauny shares
7ACH THR 34 Al R - - - - - N
Adventz Finance Private Limited - - - - - - 4300
Zuart Industeies Limited - - - - - - 3
MeDowell Holdi Lanted - - - - - - 12
Mes Jvotsna Poddar - - - - - -
Mrs Shiadha Avanvata - - - - - - 240
Mr Gaurav Acanvala - - - - - - 1 80
Mr Akshay Poddas - - - - 1563 939 - -
Me D A Prasanna - - - - 13 all - -
Mre Vijavamahantesh Khanonur - - - - 000 [LERE} - -
M Niun M Kantak - - - - 10 - - -
768.34 640.28 - - 15,77 9,70 77.05 63,70
Contrsbutions made
MOF Grawwwy Trust - - - - - - 210060 155142
MCF Superannuacon Trust - - - - - - 7193 80 47
- - - - - - 282.53 235.89
March March
31,2023 31,2012

Compensaton of kev m ement personnel®
Shott-term emplovee henaetits 57679 44 o4

ity and medical benetits -

Post-emplovment o

Termination benefits

Share-based pavment tansactions
Total compensation paid to kev management personnel 376.79 441.64

*The amounts disclosed above are the amounts recogmsed durmy the reportng perted refated to key management personnel  As the labihities for gatwiy and

compensated absences are provided on an actuanal basss tor the Company as a whole, the amount pertammnyg to the key management personnel 1s not ascertunable and,

therefore. not included above

Summary of balances as at penod vear end

Holding Company Common control Key Management Personnel and  Others including Promoters &
Directors Promoters Group
March March March March March 31.2023 March March 31,2023 \March
31,2073 31,2022 31,2023 31,2022 31,2022 31,2022

Interest recevable
ZACL 1348 45 101072 - - - - - .
+.348.45 4.010.72 - - - - - -

Advance 1o suppliers

ZACL - 1.980 00 - - - - - .
- 1.980.00 - - - - - -

Trade recevables

ZACL 8,003 60 7983 - - - - - -

ZFL - - 28031 - - - - -

8,003.60 7,983.01 280.81 - - - -

Trade pavables

ZFL - - - 4314 - - - -

PPL - - 3.808 39 - - - . -

LIL - - - - - - 094 1387
- - 3.808.39 43.14 - - 0.94 13.87

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The wansacuons for safe and purchases with related parties are made on terms equivalent 1o those prevarling wm arm’s length wansactions The outstanding recervable
pavable balances are generatly unsecured and-interest 15 charued as per terms agreed with the related partes There have been no guarantees provided or recerved for any
related party receivables or payables ’




39. Segment information

The Company 15 engaged mthe nunutacture, sale and wading of feruhizers which the management has considerad a5 smule busmess peratng seamem Further, the

Company operates m India and caters to the needs of only domestie market Accordigly. no further disclosures are required

Revenue from single customer te Government of India amounted to INR 26877017 Lakhs (Previous peried  INR 196303 31 Lakhs) ansmg from the

concesston subsidy on feruhizers

40. Financial instrunients fair value measurement

All

on the Towest fevel input that 15 sigaudicant to the far value measurement as a whole

sets and labihioes for whach fan vatue 1s measured or disclosed i the Ind AS financial statements are catesorised within the far s due hierarchy, as befow. based

evel | Quoted tunadiusted) munrket prices in active markets for idenncal assets or habihiies
Level 2 Valuaton techmques for which the lowest lesel iput thats sigmficant to the far value measurement 1s dnecty v mdirectly observable
Level 3 Valuauen techmques for which the fowest fevel mput that 1s sigmiticant to the e value measurement 1s unobservable

ets and habshties ss as below

The far value measurement erarchy of the Company's ¢

Carrying amount Fair vaines
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
March March March March Mareh 31,2023 March March 31.2023 March
31,2023 312022 31,2023 31,2022 31,2022 31,2022

Financial assets measured at fan value

Derivauves not designated as

hedges 200l 4323 - - 2060l 4323 - -
Financiat assets for winch far values are disclosed

Trade receivables 75724 20 60,302 77 - - 73724 20 00,302 77 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 3297995 48,207 20 - - 32970035 48.207 20 - -

Other bank balances 300539 751433 - - 3.003 39 751433 - -

Secunty deposits 394 71 510 8o - - 304 71 016 80 - -

Rebate  discount recervable o

supphiers 938 31 1.37777 - - 938 31 137777 - -

Other recenvable 518 86 : A . 518 80 : N ;

Tuterest accrued on deposits and

wthers 4,490 035 407038 - - 449903 4.070 38 - -
Financial habthues measured at far value

Derivauves not dessanated as

hedges 31408 - - 31408 - -
Fraaaal lishilies for which far values are disclosed

Borrowmnys 135376692 13410l b0 - - 1 [IRE N EN R - -

Lease Liabthnies 1922467 2011373 - - 21373 - -

Trade pavables 37306 43,477 21 - - 40,477 21 - -

Laabihity for capital goods 33772 - - 4,338 43 - -

buterest accrued on borovangs 32227 | 17133

Security deposits S24409 313873 - - 513873 - -

Pavabie to Gas pool operator 301988 311703

Other pavables 354423 3060302 - - 354423 300502 - -

There has been no transters benween levels durng the vear The fan values of denvatives are based on derned mark-to-market vafues The management has assessed that
the carrying values of financial assets and financial habiltties for which farr values are diselosed, reasonably approxmmate thesr far values because these mstruments have

short-term maturties

Borrowmngs melude Tndian currency and Foreian currency long-term loans wherem interest rates are linked to benchmark rates (Margmal Cost of Lending Rates’ Prime
Lendmny Rates) of respective lenders These benchmark rates are deternined based on cost of funds ot the lenders. as well as, market rates The benchmark rates are
pertodically revised by the tenders to reflect prevalent market conditions, Accordingly, effectve cost of debt for borrowings at any pount of unie 15w hne with the
prevalent market rates Due to these reasons, management 1s of the opinion that they can achieve refinancing. it required. at similar cost of debt. as cutrent effective

interest rates Hence, the discounting rate tor calculating the fair value of Borrowings has been taken i fime with the current cost of debt

BANGALORE




41. Financial risk managensent obiectives and policies

The Company's principal financial trabihiues comprese borrowmus. trade and other pavables The maw purpose of these finaneral habihtes 13 to finance the Company’s

operations: The Company’s prmeipal financial assets melude mvestments, rade and other recervables, cash and cash equivalents, bank batances. securny deposits and

dervatves that are out of regutar business operations

The Company 15 exposed 1o market risk. credit sk and lquidiny sk The Company”™s semor management oy ersees the management of these nisks The Company s r13k

or o erall rsk

provides wiitten principles

management is caned out by neasiey depariment ander pohcies approved by the Board of Dhrectors The Board of Directors

management. as well a3 policies coverng specific areas. such as foreign exchange nsk. interest rate nisk, credit nisk. use of dervauve tinaneial mstruments and non-

dervauve financial mstruments. and nvestment of excess hiquiding
() Market risk

Market visk 15 the sk that the far value of future cash ows of 1 finanaial mstrument that will fluctuate because of changes m market prices Market nisk comprises three

tvpes of 1 ve mterest rate vk, creney ok and other price nisk, such as commodity nisk Fmancial mstruments atfected by market 1sk nclude borrowias,

dertvauses fmancral sstruments and wade payables
1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk 1s the visk that the faic value or future cash lows of the Company's fianeral mstruments will fluctuate because of changes i maket mterest rates The

Company’s exposure to the sk of changes i market mterest rate relates pimanly to the Company’s borrowmgs with floating mterest rates The tollowmy table

demonstrates the senstivity 1o a reasonably possible change m nterest 1ates on horrowings attected With all other variables held constant, the Company s profit befare

L 13 affected through the mipact o floatmg rate borrowings, without considerng impact of dern atves not desnanated as hedges. as follows

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
o increase  0.3%6 decrease  0.3% increase 0.3

o decrease

INR Borsowimuas {501 96) 301196 428 33) 428 35
USD Borrowimus (177 87) 17787 (240 79) 24079
EURO Borrowings - - (1 o) oo

. Foreran curveney risk

Forerun currency sk 1s the risk that the fanr value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes m foreign exchange rates The Company’s

exposure to the sk of changes i forergn exchange rates relates primanly to the Company”’s foreign eurrency borrowings and uade pavables The summary of derivauve

mnstruments and unhedyed foreign currency exposurce 15 as below

Denvaunes (not desianated as hedges) putstandm as at the reporung date

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Forerngn Foreign
Type Currency = = .
P ) currency INR in Lakhs currency INR m Lakhs
m lakhs n Lakhs
Forward contracts USh 3ad /4 29867104 12037 28048

Un-hedued foreren currency exposure as at the reporuny date

As ot Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Rebute  discoant recenable from supplivts 938 3t 131017
Other recervables 340101 -
Borrawimns 7.267 09 913033
Trade pavables Ao 03 10,340 94

The tollowmyg tables demonstrate the sensiivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. with all other vartables held constant and without considerimg

mpact of derivatives not designated as hedges

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
5% increase 5% decrease 5% increase 3% decrease
Impact on profit before tax
USD (346 69) 34609 (889 29) 889 29
EURO - - (Lo 70y 1671

e Commodiny price risk

The Company’s operaung activities reguire the ongowng purchase of natural gas Natural was beny mtematanal commodity 1s subject to price fluctuation on account of
the change i the erude ol prices, demand supply pattem and exchange rate fluctuatons The Company 1s not affected by the price volaulity of the natural was as under
the Urea pricing formula the cost of nawial gas 1s pass through 1f the consumpuon of natural gas 15 within the permissible norm for manufacturing of Urea

The Company deats i purchase of imported fertthzers (e, DAP and MOP). which are imparted by the Company and sold 1n the domestic market The miport prices of’
these goods are governed by the wtermational prices There 15 a price and matental availability risk, whieh may vot be i line o meet the domestic market requurerent
The nisk 15 also with domestic manuracturers whose ensting 15 hased an mayoarly imported raw matenials and small value-add  However, a dynamic alignment of’
procurement to sales and constant review of market condiions and competitors costing help m mingauny the impact

The Company also deals in purchase of imported raw matenals (1 e P203, Ammonia and Urea) which are imported by the Company and used m the manufacturing of’
NP The import prices of these matenials are yoverned by mternational prices There 15 a price and matertal avarlability risk




(b) Credit risk

Credit sk s the csk of loss that may anse on outstanding financial mstrements o a counterparty defanlt on ws oblicatons The Company’s exposure to ceedit nisk an

magorly fram trade and vther recervables Other financal assets ike secuniy deposits and bank deposits are mostly with gosernment authonties and scheduled baaks and

hence. the Company daes not expeet any credit sk with reapect to these financiat assets
Trade Receivables
The Trade recenvables can be classified mito two categories. from the customers and tom the Government - the form of subsidy concesston  The concesston subsidy

recervable classitied under rade tecervables amounting o INR 63,338 47 Lakhs (March 312022 INR 37,079 74 Lakhs) 15 recenable from the Government of tndia in

the form of subsidy and bemg of sovereign nature credit risk ss not pereaived  The recevables tram customers also melude INR 3,284 41 Lakhs ( March 31, 2022 INR

783 23 Lakhs) recenvable from relued paty an which manacement daes not expest any challenue i realisabon Futther. as per terms aurced with related parties,

snterest 15 absa charged on the overdue balances

From market recervables from customers. the Company extends eredit to customers i the nermat course of business The Company considers factors such as credit wack
tecord i the market and past dealings tor extending credst to customers The Company momstors the track record of the paviments by the customers and the recervables

are regalarly montoted The Company evduates the concentration of nisk with respect to tade recen ables as low. since the customer base i3 frge and focated s several

pursdictions and operate w Largely independent markets: The Company has also taken secunny deposits ram 1ts customers. which mitigate the eredit visk v some extent

The maximum exposure o credit nisk at the reporting date 15 the carnmg value of each class of fmancial assets disclosed i Note 9 The Compam holds coliateral as

seCunty (o1 many of s customers AU Mareh 3102023033 73%, (31 March 2022 45 47%9) of the Company's tade 1ecen ables from customers are covered by collateral

secunty

Animparrment analysis 1s performed at the reporting date using a provision matnx 1 measure expected credit losses ("ECLY) The provision res are based on days past

due 3

s of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (e . by geographical region. product type, customer tvpe and rarng) The cateulation reflects

LroUpINg
the probability-wenghted outcome. the ume value of money and reasonable and supportable mformation that 15 s wlable at the reporting date about past events. current
conditions and forecasts of futwre econonic conditions

“Loprovisson as at March 31 2023 15 lower than the provision of earlier years. the Company 1s carrving ECL af INR 30003 Lakhs

Though the equired amount of F

SUNC 38 Previnus year on conservatve hJSIS
Reconciaon olnmpaiment ot wrade recevable and other assets

As e
March 31,2022

[npairment of Trade receivable
Balance at the begmnmg of the vear 1,757 25 1823 70

Less Reversal of earlier years provisions (90 oy (80 31)

Batance at the end of the vears 1,646.61 1,737.23

Linpairment of Other assets

Balance al the begmomg ol the yew 1492 20 P92 26

Add Provision made durmg the year - -

Less Provision reversed durmg the year (3704 -
Balance at the end of the vear 1,155.22 1,192.26

¢ Balance at the end of the vear meludes ECL pravision anusnting to INR 500 03 Lakhs
(c) Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective 15 to mamtam optimum levels of quidity ©0 meet its cash and collatral requirements at ail times The Company relies on a aux of borrowmys
and excess operatmy cash flows 1o meet ts needs for funds The current commtted hines of credut are sufficient w meet 15 short to medium fong term expansson needs
The Company momtors rolling forecasts of its hquidity requirements 1o ensure st has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while mamtaming sutficient headroom on
its undrawn commtted borrowimny facifities at all umes so that the Company does not breach borrowing linits or covenants {where apphcable) on any ot sts borrowng

facihues

Fhe wble belfow summanises the matunty profile of the Company's financral habiliies on undiscounted basts

Maturities

Upto | 1-3 3-3 Above 3 Total

vear verrs vears vears
March 31,2023
Non-current borrowsnus Q27123 1382023 1275551 90B2 79 44938 78
Lease habilines 23103 40228 47082 3373 10 133783
Current borrowings 90.828 14 - ’ - - 90,828 |4
Trade pavables 24257 30 - - - 24257 36
Other financial fiatalies 12,820 30 - - - 12.820 30
Total 1,37,408.86 14.291.53 13,226.33 12.455.89 1.77.382.61
March 31,2022
Non-curremt borcowings 079275 1417473 5,448 34 2491 80 28607 88
Lease habihittes 33148 33353 3.600 31 4980 44
Current borrowings - - - 1O5553 72
Trade pavaliles 40477 21 - - - 40477 21
Other financial habiliies 1707272 15 14 - - 17.087 86
Total 1,70.135.52 14.721.35 3.984.07 3832.17 1.96,713.11

o

<




42, Ratio Analvsis and its elements

As at As at . - =
. . . Reason for variance above 25%
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, March 31, "u chuange < N
as per Schedute 11 requirement
2023 2022
Current rauo Current Assets Current Labiliies 1 Pod 002
Debt- Equity Rauo Toal Det Shareholder’s Equity Pod P90 1392
Debt Seivice s tor debt service = {Debt service = Interest & 180 72 30%
Conerage vano Net profit atter taxes ~ Non- [Lease Payments -
cash operating expenses Principal Repavments
Return on Equiny rato Net Profits after taxes - Averase Shareholder’s 13129 1302 331 % Due to improved efficiency &
Preference Dividend Equiny higher profits post completion of
Lnergy Improvement Project
durmg the vear
fovemony Turnover 1Co0s1 of goods sold Average hventory 707 390 1192
rato
Trade Recevable Net credit sales = (iross Average Trade Recevable 312 193 387
Turnover Ratra credit sales - sales return
Trade Pavable Net credit purchases = Gross | Average Trade Pavables o 70 559 21 1%
Turnover Ratio credit purchases - purchase
return
Net Capital Tumover [Netsales = Total sales - sales|W orkmyg capital = Current 200 3933 324 % Tacrease monet working capital at
Rauo retwn assets — Carrent habaluies the end o the vear
Net Profit rato Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - 370% 303%, 219y,
sales return
Return on Capital Earmngs before mterest and  [Capital Employed = 1298%, 907, 318, sher profits due 10 mproved
Fmplaved fanes Tanushle Net Waorth - etficieney after completion of
Totat Debt ~ Deferred Tax Energy Improvement Project
FLiatihte during the vear

43. Other Statatory Information

(1 The Company does not have any Benanu property, where any proceedmy has been imuated or pending agamst the Company for holdmg any Benam property

() _The Struck off Company details

Nuture of transuctions Dalance
Name of the Struck off Company with Outstanding
struck off company (INR)
Varshak Shares Linmted 60 00
Pushkar Financial Services Linited 1000

1.000 D0
1.000 00
1,000 00
00D 30
000 00
500 00

Eastcoast Investments Limated

Tupta Financial Services Lamited

Kothan & Sons {Nommees) Private Limited
New Ambadi Tvestments Povate Linited
Navmmath Investments Povate Lumited
Ushia Holdimgs Povate Limited

Shares held by struck otT
company

() The Company does not have any charges or satstacuon which s vet to be registered with ROC bevond the statutory period
(n) The Company has not waded orimvested in Crypto curreney or Virtual Currency durng the financiad year

vy The Company has not advanced or loaned or mvested funds to any other person{s) o entitv(ies), meluding toreign enutes tntermedianes) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indirectly tend or nvest m other persons or entities wdenufied n any manner whatsoever by or on behalt of the company (Utumate Beneticiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike 10 or on behalt of the Ulimate Beneficianes

(vi) The Company has not recenved any fund from any personts) or entitytses), including foretgn enuties (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded
writing or othenwise) that the Company shall
12) directly or ndirectly lend or mvest in other persons or entiues 1denutied i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf o' the Fundmyg Party (Ulumate Beneticianes)
ar
) provide any guarantee, secunty or the like on behalt of the Ulimate Beneficianes

(v The Company has not any such wransacteon which 1s not recorded m the books of accounts that as been surrendered or disclosed as meome during the year i the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961




44, Capital management

For the purpose of the Compam s capral management. capital meludes 1ssued equity capital and all other equaty reserves attributable to the equity shareholders The

primary objective of the Company's capital management 15 to ensure thatit maintams a strong credit rating and capital rawos w order to support its busimess and maximise

sharcholder value

the Company momtors capital usimg a

borrowings reduced by cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

gearny ratio. which s net debt divided by total capital The Company meludes wiathin net debt, all non-current and current

As at As at
Notes March 31, March 31,2022

2023
Non-current horrmwmes 14 3306735 2181513
Lease Ltabihties 13 192207 211375
Current borrowngs 19 1.00.099 37 11234047
Less Cash and cash equivatents 10 (32979 493) (43.207 20
Less Other hank balances (excluding nnpaid divadend accounts) 11 (3485 93) (7,392 |9y
Net debt {A) 1.01.223.74 80,675.96
Equity share capital 12 11.854 87 11.854 87
Other equity 13 08,403 93 5432142
Total equity (B) 80,318.82 68.306.99
Gearing ratio (A ' B) 126%% 118%)

Inorder o achreve this overall objecuve, the Company 's capital management, amongst other tings. also ensures that 1t meets financtal covenants attached 1o the mierest-

bearng barrowings that define capial structure requirements

No changes were made in the objectuives. policies or processes ror managing capital during the year ended March 31,2023 and March 31, 2022

43 Previous vear figures have been regrouped re-classified wherever ne:
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